
Traffic Management 
Advisory Committee
Agenda

To: Councillor Stuart King (Chair)

Councillors Muhammad Ali, Jeet Bains, Felicity Flynn, Simon Hoar and 
Karen Jewitt

Reserve Members: Robert Canning, Luke Clancy, Mary Croos, Ian Parker, 
Pat Ryan and David Wood

A meeting of the Traffic Management Advisory Committee which you are hereby 
summoned to attend, will be held on Wednesday, 16 October 2019 at 6.30 pm in 
Town Hall 

JACQUELINE HARRIS BAKER
Director of Law and Governance
London Borough of Croydon
Bernard Weatherill House
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA

Cliona May 
020 8726 6000 x47279
cliona.may@croydon.gov.uk
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
Tuesday, 8 October 2019

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
If you require any assistance, please contact the person detailed above, on the 
righthand side. 

N.B This meeting will be paperless. The agenda can be accessed online at 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

Public Document Pack



AGENDA – PART A

1.  Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the 
Committee.

2.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 16)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 as an 
accurate record.

3.  Disclosure of Interests 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest 
is registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests.

4.  Urgent Business (if any) 
To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency.

5.  Norfolk Road Area - Results of Informal Consultation Report 
(Pages 17 - 32)

6.  Cecil Road Area - Results of Statutory Consultation on the 
Proposed Change of Operational Hours of a Controlled Parking 
Zone (CPZ) (Pages 33 - 44)

7.  Dunheved Roads Area - Results of Informal Consultation on the 
Proposed Hours of a New Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) (Pages 45 
- 60)



3

8.  Kynaston Road Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the 
Croydon CPZ (N1 Permit Area) (Pages 61 - 74)

PART B

9.  Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”



This page is intentionally left blank



Traffic Management Advisory Committee

Meeting held on Wednesday, 24 July 2019 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX

MINUTES

Present: Councillor Stuart King (Chair);

Councillors Muhammad Ali, Robert Canning, Felicity Flynn and Simon Hoar 
and Ian Parker

Also 
Present:

Councillor Andrew Pelling

Apologies: Councillors Jeet Bains and Karen Jewitt

PART A

1/19  Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 May 2019 were agreed as an accurate 
record.

2/19  Disclosure of Interests

Councillor Pelling informed the Committee that he was the Vice-Chair of the 
London Road Safety Council.

3/19  Urgent Business (if any)

There were no items of urgent business.

4/19  Objections to Emission-Based Parking Permit Charges and Diesel 
Surcharges for Permits

Officers introduced the report stating that the policy to introduce emission-
based parking charges was linked to the Air Quality Action Plan, the Clean Air 
Strategy and the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

A consultation on the scheme was undertaken, and officers stated that all 
14,000 permit holders in the borough were contacted by email, or by post if 
email was not possible. From the consultation around 1,000 responses were 
received and had been responded to.

Ms Batt addressed the Committee in objection to the proposals as it was 
stated that residents had not been informed of the proposed increase in 
parking permit charges. Furthermore, it was stated that the proposal was 
disproportionate and unfair as only impacted those who lived in Controlled 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Parking Zone (CPZ), as such it remained free to park outside the CPZs. 
Whilst Ms Batt noted that the aim was to encourage people to replace their 
cars to lower emitting vehicles; it was stated that it was not possible for many 
as they were on low incomes or pensions and their current cars had no resale 
value. Ms Batt suggested that rather than charge for parking the council 
should consider charging on the miles travelled; and thus the emissions 
produced by the vehicles. 

Ms Thomas also spoke in objection to the proposals stating that residents felt 
that it was an additional tax and that they had had no warning. It was stated 
that the charging was an unfair increase as it only impacted those who had 
parking permits and who wanted to park by their homes. Concerns were 
raised about those who drove in Croydon, but parked on roads which were 
not in a CPZ; that whilst they emitted emissions they were not being charged.

Ms McSherry addressed the Committee in objection, also, stating that she 
only became aware of the proposal when she was renewing her parking 
permit; and as such it was felt that the council had failed in its statutory 
requirement to consult residents on the proposals. The Equality Analysis was 
referenced as stating there was a risk that the proposal would 
disproportionally affect those with disabilities or long term health concerns 
and, it was suggested, the mitigations would not be sufficient. Ms McSherry 
noted that different authorities had different bandings for similar policies and it 
was felt that this was not creating a level playing field for London residents. 
Furthermore, it was stated that there was insufficient infrastructure to 
encourage residents to buy electric cars and that many residents could not 
afford to replace their current cars. The council was requested to look at 
alternative solutions which were more reasonable and proportionate. 

Dr Nicodemi noted that emissions were an issue across the whole borough 
and that it was the responsibility of all to contribute to supporting the 
environment; however it was felt that the proposal was grossly unfair as it only 
impacted those in CPZs. Concerns were further raised that a number of 
permit holders had not received communication regarding the proposals and 
had only heard of the consultation via Inside Croydon.

Mr Hameed stated that the proposed charging bands would lead to all 
residents paying more than currently charged, and queried how the banding 
had been calculated. It was noted that hybrid and fully electric vehicles are 
very expensive; and that there was not sufficient infrastructure in the borough 
to support all residents having plug-in hybrid or electric cars. Mr Hameed 
further expressed concerns in relation to the consultation undertaken by the 
council as it was stated that many affected residents were unaware of the 
proposals.

A statement from Mr Samuel was read to the Committee which stated that he 
objected to the scheme on four points; that a parked car does not emit any 
emissions, that outside the operating times of a CPZ it is currently free to park 
in a CPZ, the proposal would cause displacement to areas outside CPZs, and 
that residents had not been consulted on the proposals. 

Page 6



Cllr Pelling addressed the Committee as the ward councillor for Waddon ward 
and sharing the views of Waddon residents. It was noted that a 10% response 
rate to the consultation showed a high level of concern by residents, and that 
it was important to fully consider those concerns. Councillor Pelling stated that 
serious consideration should be given to the bandings as over 700 residents 
would be impacted by an increase in the permit fee from £80 to £300. It was 
suggested that a reasonable amount of time should be given to enable 
residents to save up to change their vehicle, as the proposed increase would 
have a significant impact on residents. Additionally, it was stated that it was 
important that the infrastructure for electric cars needed to be in place before 
the increase took place to support residents. Councillor Pelling concluded by 
stating that residents felt it was important that the scheme was cost neutral 
and was not a means to increase revenue.

In response to the concerns and objections raised the officer stated that 
emails were sent to all permit holders using the email addresses provided 
when residents had applied for permits. The council had tested to ensure the 
email would not go into people’s spam or junk folder. For those residents 
without email addresses, the council had written to them separately. Officers 
were confident that the email had been correctly sent as a large number of 
responses had been received within 48 hours of the email being sent. 
Furthermore, officers stated that receiving 1,000 responses from 14,000 
notifications was a relatively high response rate to a parking consultation.

In relation to the concerns raised regarding the bandings the council was 
proposing; officers noted that the DVLA had 16 bands. Whilst it was agreed 
that Croydon was proposing a different system to other London authorities; 
those schemes were looked at and the proposal in the report was to ensure 
there was a simplified system of five bands.

Officers stated that they had sought to have the scheme neutral; however this 
was not entirely possible. However, any surplus was required to be spent on 
areas outlined within Traffic Management legislation and, at present, it was 
spent on supporting the Freedom Pass scheme. It was noted by officers that 
the cost of permits had not increased in the past seven years, and the 
proposal to increase the lowest permit charge to £104 was in line with inflation 
over that period. 

In response to concerns relating to the scheme is adversely affecting those 
with disabilities, the officer confirmed that blue badge holders did not require a 
permit and so there was no disadvantage. Additionally, it was stated that 
companion permits were also available to support those with disabilities. 

Officers confirmed that the council was working to improve the infrastructure 
for electric and plug-in hybrids, and as such it was planned that new charging 
points would be implemented in the next six to 12 months, with 400 to be 
installed by the council in total. This figure, it was stated, was in addition to 
those being installed by Transport for London (TfL) and fuel garages. 

Page 7



In response to concerns raised that parked cars do not pollute, officers stated 
that they are taking parking spaces which makes it difficult for residents who 
regularly use their cars to park. There was a need to manage supply and 
demand as there was finite space for parking in the borough.

Councillors stated that they all agreed that it was important that everyone 
worked to tackle emissions as there was a climate emergency.

Some councillors, however, raised concerns that while it was positive that 400 
charging points were being installed it was fairly impractical for thousands of 
residents to use them. It was suggested that all new developments with 
parking spaces be required to have charging point installed. In response, 
officers confirmed that policy was in place to require charging points be 
installed in new developments. Additionally it was noted that each charging 
point could charge up to four vehicles at one time. 

Concerns were raised by some Members that those vehicles which were 
rarely used would incur a high charge, and that cars which did not qualify for a 
ULEZ (Ultra Low Emission Zone) charge would be charged by Croydon. It 
was felt that the policy should be an emission based policy which was based 
on emissions, and not on where people lived.

Further concerns were also raised in relation to the proposed charge for band 
5 vehicles which was felt to be too high, particularly for those on low incomes 
or pensioners who would find it difficult to change to a lower emitting vehicle. 

The Cabinet Member stated the council had looked at the schemes set by 
other local authorities and TfL, and while the proposed Croydon scheme did 
not exactly match these they had influenced the design of the Croydon 
scheme. 

Some councillors noted that the roads were highly polluted which was having 
a serious, and negative, impact on the health of residents and was 
contributing to early deaths. With other 10,000 more cars in Croydon between 
2013 and 2016, and likely more in coming years it was felt that it was 
important that something was done to tackle the air quality issue. Councillors 
stated that the public health emergency was clear and that it was the duty of 
the council to respond.

Councillors welcomed the decision that blue badge holders and companion 
permit holders would not affected. Additionally, the phased introduction of 
charging and implementation of charging points was welcomed, however it 
was suggested that the majority were needed in the CPZs to support 
residents to move to cleaner vehicles.

In response to the suggestion that councillors should lead by example, and 
that they should be charged in relation to proposed charging schedule for the 
councillor parking permit, the Cabinet Member confirmed he supported the 
idea and that he would raise the suggestion with the Group Whips.

Page 8



Officers confirmed that Croydon had the highest rate of admissions to hospital 
for childhood asthma in London, and as such it was felt that it was important 
that there was a policy which sought to tackle emissions. It was further noted 
that, 76% of people were in favour of the council tackling emissions when the 
council consulted on the Air Quality Action Plan. 

The Chair stated that it had been difficult to create a scheme which sought to 
tackle the emissions problem without the potential to adversely affect those on 
lower incomes. While it might be desirable to means test parking permits it 
was not permissible under Traffic Management regulations. It was recognised 
that there was a public health emergency, and that improving air quality was 
the focus of the policy and not parking charges and raising income.

The council, it was stated, had sought to get the right balance between 
proposals which would encourage people to move to cleaner vehicles or 
public transport and avoiding prohibitively high charges.

In relation to the concerns raised regarding the consultation, the Chair stated 
that the consultation emails had been sent and so it was considered that the 
council had consulted permit holders. 

The Chair concluded by noting that the Government was requiring councils to 
act on emissions, and that a number of other authorities were also introducing 
emission based parking policies. It was considered to be a tool for tackling air 
quality and was part a wider over-arching aim to improve the environment 
including; School Streets, fining of idling vehicles, and the introduction of 
diesel surcharges and pay & display charging. 

Some councillors stated that while it was Government policy to tackle 
emissions, it was felt that the proposal did not address emissions and only 
penalised parking.

Following a vote the Committee voted four in support of the 
recommendations, and two against.

RESOLVED: To

1. Consider the responses received to the formal consultation on the 
proposed introduction of emission-based parking permit charges and 
the contents of the report and make such comments to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job Share) as 
they consider necessary; and

2. Note that in accordance with the delegation from Cabinet dated 25 
March 2019, the Executive Director Place, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (Job 
Share) is authorised to consider the outcome of the consultation 
regarding Emission-Based Parking Charges; and subject to there being 
no significant changes which would necessitate further consultation, 
finalise, agree and implement the Emission-Based Parking Charges 
proposals (see Appendix 1 of the report). Note that any proposals 

Page 9



requiring significant changes or further consultation will be brought 
back to Cabinet for consideration.

5/19  South Croydon Area - Results of Informal Consultation on the Proposed 
Introduction of a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)

The Chair proposed that the order of the agenda be amended to take the 
South Croydon Area report as the second substantive item. The Committee 
agreed to vary the order of business.

The officer informed the Committee that the report outlined the results of an 
informal consultation in the South Croydon area for a proposed introduction of 
a CPZ. Around 22 roads were consulted around the South Croydon Bus 
Garage which was noted to be an area of very dense parking.

It was noted that across the whole area which was consulted there was a 
fairly negative response; however a positive response was received from 
Sunny Nook Gardens, Sussex Road and Bynes Road; and the 
recommendation was to proceed to formal consultation on those particular 
roads.

Mr Shorey spoke in opposition to the proposals stating that as a proprietor of 
a local business he had a vested interest in whether the area became a CPZ, 
and that he had spoken to many of his customers regarding the proposals. As 
such, he felt that the proposal would have a negative impact and would only 
move the issue to other roads which had not voted in support; rather than fix 
it. Mr Shorey stated that many local people felt that they were being ignored. 
Furthermore, it was suggested that the questionnaire had been confusing and 
some residents had voted in support when they objected to the proposal. Mr 
Shorey concluded by stating that he felt the proposal to extend the CPZ to 
three roads would have a negative impact on local businesses.  

Mr Humphrey spoke to the Committee in support of the recommendations; 
stating that as a resident of Sussex Road he had noted that parking had got 
worse in the local area and was now a major issue. It was suggested that the 
proposal would stop commuter parking, as Sussex Road was the closest road 
to South Croydon station which was not in a CPZ. In addition to commuter 
parking, Mr Humphrey suggested that parking from a local car garage also 
exasperated the issue as customers and staff often parked cars on the 
surrounding road before and after MOTs. In response to some resident 
concerns, Mr Humphrey stated that he had spoken to the council and had had 
it confirmed that the proposal was for a continuous parking bay; so no parking 
bays would be lost.

In response, the officer stated that the council was responding to petitions 
which had been submitted. It was recognised that parking was an issue in the 
area, however in response to the informal consultation it was recommended 
to proceed to formal consultation only where there had been support. It was 
anticipated that the scheme would help residents; however it was recognised 
that there would likely be a knock-on effect to the surrounding roads.

Page 10



Members noted that a response rate of 30% was relatively high for parking 
consultations, and that the council had listened to those responses by 
designing a scheme which proposed extending the CPZ to those roads which 
were in support.

In response to Member questions the officer confirmed that the ward 
councillors had been contacted for their views on the proposals; and that the 
councillors felt that there was a parking problem in the roads which supported 
the introduction of a CPZ, but that there was a concern of possible 
displacement. 

Members raised concerns in relation to splitting Bynes Road; however noted 
that the recommendations were to undertake a formal consultation of the 
proposed roads. It was further noted that if there was insufficient support in 
Bynes Road then the scheme could be reduced before the final decision was 
made by the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration 
(Job Share) or the Executive Director Place. 

The officer confirmed that the proposal to have continuous bays, and so there 
would not be a loss of parking, and that there was no intention to remove the 
current CPZ bays in Bynes Road. Furthermore, it was confirmed that all 
residents in Bynes Road would be informed of the formal consultation.

RESOLVED: That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend 
to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job 
share) that they

1. Consider the responses received to the informal consultation on the 
proposed introduction of a CPZ (Controlled Parking Zone) into the 
South Croydon Area;

2. Agree to proceed to the formal consultation stage for a proposal to 
extend the Croydon CPZ (West Permit Zone) into Sunny Nook 
Gardens and Sussex Road, as illustrated on drawing number PD 398a;

3. Agree to proceed to the formal consultation stage for a proposal to 
extend the Bynes Road CPZ into the remainder of Bynes Road as 
illustrated on drawing no. PD 398b; and

4. If formal consultation is agreed, delegate to the Highway Improvement 
Manager, Public Realm Directorate the authority to give the notice.

6/19  Cecil Road and Aurelia Road - Results of Informal Consultation on the 
Proposed Change of Hours of an Existing Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)

The officer informed Members that a petition had been received which 
requested the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in Aurelia Road and Cecil Road 
be extended to 8am – 8pm Monday – Sunday. An informal consultation had 
taken place which had resulted in 69% of respondents supporting the 
proposal.

Page 11



The report recommended that the council undertake formal consultation on 
the proposal, which was planned to take place as soon as possible. 

In response to Member questions the officer confirmed that it was not 
desirable for different roads to have different hours of operation as it could 
cause confusion. It was anticipated that Aurelia Road would experience a 
benefit from a consistent approach to the CPZ.

The Chair noted that many the CPZ was implemented many residents had 
asked for the extended operating hours, and that this consultation would 
support the request.

RESOLVED: That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend 
to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job 
share) that they

1. Consider the responses received to the informal consultation on the 
proposed change of hours in the existing West Thornton CPZ in Cecil 
Rd and Aurelia Rd; 

2. Agree for the reasons detailed in the report, to proceed with formal 
consultation regarding the proposed change the operational hours in 
the West Thornton CPZ (drawing no.PD-396) to 8am – 8pm, Monday – 
Sunday;

3. If formal consultation is agreed, delegate to the Highway Improvement 
Manager, Public Realm Directorate the authority to give the notice; and

4. Agree that the results of the formal consultation are reported to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee in order for it to make 
appropriate recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport and Regeneration (job share).

7/19  Lower Road Area - Results of Informal Consultation on the Proposed 
Introduction of a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)

The officer informed Members that a petition requesting a Controlled Parking 
Zone (CPZ) in the Lower Road Area had been received; however a low 
response rate, which was largely negative, had been the outcome of an 
informal consultation. As such, it was recommended that the council did not 
proceed to formal consultation.

The Chair noted that the council requested petitions had a large proportion of 
local residents support so as to ensure council resources were effectively 
used.

RESOLVED: That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend 
to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job 
share) that they

1. Consider the responses received to the informal consultation on the 
proposed introduction of a CPZ into the Lower Road Area; 

Page 12



2. Agree not to proceed to the formal consultation stage regarding the 
proposal to introduce the Kenley Controlled Parking Zone into Lower 
Road, Little Roke Road and Little Roke Avenue as illustrated on 
Drawing No. PD 395 due to the reasons set out in paragraph 3.8 of the 
report; and

3. Inform the organisers of the petitions of these decisions.

8/19  Outcome of Formal Consultation on School Streets

Officers introduced the report stating that a pilot at three schools had been 
made permanent the previous year, and the report in the agenda 
recommended creating School Streets surrounding a further eight schools. 
The aim of the scheme was to improve the health of young people and to 
reduce congestion near schools at school pick-up and drop-off times. 

Members noted that Fairchildes School had not been included in the report, 
and officers confirmed that following consultation with residents an 
Experimental Traffic Management Order was proposed which was supported 
by the ward councillors and the Head Teacher. The report on the Fairchildes 
scheme was due to be considered and agreed by the Executive Director 
Place, and would be shared with the Chair and Lead Opposition Member.

Officers informed Members that residents could, and had, responded on the 
proposals for more than one school. It was noted that all the responses 
received were outlined within the report, and that across the seven locations 
there was an even level of support and objection; although it was noted that 
some roads were supportive whereas others were in objection. 

In response to Member questions, officers stated there was no specific data in 
relation to the number of accidents or types of accidents; however the 
creation of safer roads around schools would support a reduction in accidents.

Members raised concerns relating to the displacement of traffic in the roads 
surrounding Woodcote Primary School following the decision to make it a 
School Street in 2018. It was stated that within the local area there were a 
number of cul-de-sacs and closes which were being affected by the 
displacement of traffic, and while there were mobile patrols of the local roads 
residents were raising concerns. Officers confirmed that they had visited the 
cul-de-sacs and it was noted that the roads were saturated with parking; as 
such there was no opportunity for displacement. Furthermore, it was stated 
that the further people had to travel to park their car to drop of their children 
the more likely it was to encourage behavioural change to walk, cycle or scoot 
to school.

Officers informed Members that in response to the displacement experienced 
by residents in Coulsdon, residents were being encouraged to petition for 
parking controls as it was recognised that there were some difficulties in the 
local area in relation to parking.

Page 13



In response to Member questions, officers stated that Royal Mail vehicles 
were able to access any road during the restrictions; however it was not the 
intention of the council to provide access to delivery vehicles as it was 
important to ensure the roads were safe and it was noted that uncongested 
roads can lead to people to drive faster. In terms of children who require to be 
dropped off by the school; the council required the school to inform them to 
allow the vehicle access to the road.

The Chair informed Members that the council had received a number of 
requests from schools to be a part of the School Streets, and that part of the 
process of deciding which schools to proceed with was looking at whether 
they had travel plans.

It was felt that the scheme had encouraged a behavioural change as the three 
original schools in the scheme had seen a reduction in the number of students 
arriving by car. Additionally, it had been seen that while some displacement of 
traffic had been experienced; that the parking had been better with fewer cars 
being parking on dangerous corners or across peoples driveways.

Officers informed Members that Harris Academy Purley had approached the 
school to be part of the scheme; and as Regina Coeli Primary School was 
located on the same road it was contacted. The school was in support of the 
scheme, and so had been included. 

Members were informed that in addition to more courteous parking, and a 
decrease in the number of pupils arriving by car, the three original schools 
had also seen an improvement in punctuality. By working with the schools to 
improve cycle proficiency and encouraging walking it was an aim to not only 
improve safety, but to also tackle childhood obesity. 

Officers confirmed that the impact of the scheme was being reviewed and 
changes were being made where possible. The council had, and would 
continue to, review the impact with surveys. In addition to surveys; air quality, 
health benefits and punctuality would also be considered to understand the 
effect of the scheme. It was further noted by Members that the enforcement 
resource was limited, and that this scheme enabled the council to focus on 
fewer problem schools and provided an improved response rate.

Some Members stated their support for the scheme which sought to address 
the issue of dangerous streets surrounding schools around drop-off and pick-
up time, and to improve the health of young people in the borough. It was 
noted that the results from the original three schools showed a number of 
benefits, and as such it was beneficial to support other schools to realise the 
benefits also.

Following a vote the Committee voted four in support of the 
recommendations, and two abstentions.

Page 14



RESOLVED: That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend 
to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job 
share) that they

1. Consider the objections and responses from the consultation on the 
Public Notice of 23 May 2019 (attached at Appendix 1 of the report);

2. For the reasons detailed within the report to introduce School Street 
schemes under the permanent Traffic Management Order procedure in 
the following 7 locations as detailed in the Public Notice of 23 May 
2019:
 Abingdon Road (between Turle Road & Upwood Road), at Norbury 

Manor Primary School;
 Biggin Way (between Biggin Hill & Downsview Road), at 

Downsview Primary and Nursery Schools;
 Brading Road (between Cecil Road & Lavender Road) and 

Rosecourt Road, at West Thornton Primary Academy;
 Cypress Road, at Cypress Primary School;
 Goston Gardens (between Winterbourne Road & Oaklands 

Avenue) and Winterbourne Road (between London Road & 
Wiltshire Road), at Winterbourne Girls and Boys Schools;

 Kendra Hall Road, at Harris Academy Purley and Regina Coeli 
Primary School; and

 Little Roke Road (between Lower Road & the north-western flank 
wall of No. 47 Little Roke Road), at Harris Primary Academy 
Kenley.

9/19  Exclusion of the Press and Public

The item was not required.

The meeting ended at 8.44 pm

Signed:

Date:

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

16 OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: NORFOLK ROAD AREA – RESULTS OF INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION ON A POSSIBLE EXTENSION OF 
THE THORNTON HEATH CONTROLLED PARKING 

ZONE (CPZ)   
LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Stuart King, Acting Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share)  

WARDS: Thornton Heath  

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

This report is in accordance with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan Feb 2018 
• The Local Implementation Plan; 3.6 Croydon Transport policies 
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 3, 4 and 6 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43. 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
These proposals can be contained within the available budget. 

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: n/a 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Acting 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) that 
they: 
 

1.1 Consider the responses received to the informal consultation on the proposed 
introduction of a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in the Norfolk Road Area. 
 

1.2 Agree to proceed to the formal consultation stage for a proposal to introduce a 
CPZ into the Norfolk Road, as illustrated on drawing number PD-405a. 

 
1.3 If formal consultation is agreed, delegate to the Highway Improvement Manager, 

Public Realm Directorate the authority to give the notice. 
 

 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report considers the results of the informal consultation on the proposed 

introduction of a CPZ into the Norfolk Road Area which includes roads close to the 
existing Thornton Heath CPZ. 

 
2.2 Due to the majority in favour of an introduction of a CPZ in Norfolk Road, it is 

recommended that the Council proceeds to the formal consultation stage with a 
proposal to introduce a CPZ in Norfolk Road only, as illustrated on drawing No. PD-
405a. 

 
2.3 On 16 September 2019 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 

June 2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it 
was appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.2 above 
to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share). 
 
 

3 DETAIL 
 
3.1 An informal consultation was carried out on 28 May 2019 in the Norfolk Road Area, 

as a direct response to a petition received from residents of Norfolk Road, 
requesting that the Council introduce a controlled parking scheme to address the 
parking concerns in the area. 
 

3.2  A letter, map of the consultation area, Frequently Asked Questions factsheet and 
questionnaire were delivered by Royal Mail, to every property in the consultation 
area. In this document the council provided all the relevant information relating to 
parking controls, including costs and asked a series of questions. 
 

3.3 The council tries to make it easy and convenient for everyone to respond by 
providing a postage paid return envelope. The results below are compiled to show 
the individual responses from each household and business to determine the views 
expressed by the locals. The analysis of the questionnaire and comments also helps 
the council to ensure that the design of a proposed zone most accurately reflects the 
desires of the community, be it week day only zone, controls on Saturday, or even 7-
day controls.  
 

3.4 The informal consultation area included the following roads:  
 Annsworthy Avenue, Beulah Grove, Beulah Road, Buller Road, Buttonscroft        

Close, Foulsham Road, Grange Park Road, Hobart Gardens, Heath Road, Kitchener 
Road, Luna Road, Manchester Road, Milner Road, Natal Road, Norbury Road, 
Norfolk Road, Parchmore Road, Robert Close and Woodville Road. The informal 
consultation ended on 21 June 2019. 

 
3.5 The results of this consultation have been analysed, both for the overall area       

and on a street-by-street basis. When examining the results, the council has       
taken into account the response rate, the level of support and whether the           
streets involved would form a coherent zone area. The council tries to ensure      
that zone boundaries are clear so that any confusion can be avoided.  

Page 18



 
3.6 This enabled the council to accurately define the areas where there is support for 

the introduction of controls and those areas where there is not. The responses 
received have helped the council to decide whether a scheme should be introduced 
and how it will operate. 

 
3.7 The introduction of parking controls in one street often results in displacement 

parking problems in adjacent streets, as commuters and other motorists may move 
their cars to the nearest road where parking is unrestricted. Consequently, the 
council will consult over a wider area than that in which there are known to be 
current parking difficulties. 

 
3.8 For parking controls to be introduced, the Council has taken into account the views 

of residents and businesses. However, customer feedback is not the single deciding 
factor. All relevant factors will be considered before arriving at a decision.  

 
3.9  CPZs are introduced under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and require legal 

traffic management orders (TMO), which can be utilised to designate, among other 
things – the permitted parking places and yellow line waiting restrictions. Subject to 
approval to proceed to statutory consultation, the council will undertake a 
consultation with statutory consultees, advertise the proposals in the local press and 
have regard to any objections before giving consideration to the making of any 
orders. 

 
3.10 The complete process, from informal consultation to zone implementation, generally 

takes between six and twelve months. The process takes time as once a final 
scheme has been designed and approved, the Council is required to consult the 
police and emergency services about our proposals, advertise and make the TMO, 
manufacture and install parking signs, as well as install road markings.  

 
3.11  Residents and businesses will be informed of the results of the informal consultation 

exercise and the decision made by the cabinet member by letter. Updates on each 
consultation and a copy of the committee report detailing the results can always be 
found on the council’s website. 

 
Consultation results 

 
3.12 Consultees were requested to register their “Yes/No” preference votes, with the      

 operational hours of 9am to 5pm Monday to Saturday matching the controls in        
 the existing Thornton Heath zone bordering the consultation area. 

 
3.13 A total of 754 questionnaires were delivered by Royal mail and 223 completed    

questionnaires were returned, representing a 30% response rate, which is to be 
expected for an informal consultation exercise of this type. 
 

3.14 Table 1 below, shows the number of properties per street, within the consultation 
area and the total number of returns received from each street.  

 

Page 19



Table 1 – Response Rate per Street 
 

Street Name 
Number of 
Properties 

Responses 
Received 

Response Rate 

Annsworthy Avenue 11 7 64% 
Beulah Grove 2 0 0 
Beulah Road 124 46 37% 
Buller Road 20 6 30% 
Buttonscroft Close 4 0 0% 
Foulsham Road 24 8 33% 
Grange Park Road 64 19 30% 
Heath Road 95 21 22% 
Hobart Gardens 19 10 53% 
Kitchener Road 36 7 19% 
Luna Road 60 16 27% 
Milner Road 32 13 41% 
Manchester Road 41 7 14% 
Natal Road 37 9 24% 
Norfolk Road 47 15 32% 
Parchmore Road 47 7 15% 
Roberts Close 2 0 0% 
Woodville Road 89 32 36% 
TOTAL: 754 223 30% 

 
 
 

Page 20



 
3.15 Table 2 below shows responses in detail on a street by street basis. 

Table 2:  

 
 
3.16 Table 2 above, shows 23% of the total number of respondents were in favour of the 

introduction of a CPZ in their street. The remaining 75% of the respondents did not 
support   the introduction of parking controls. 
 

3.17 Norfolk Road residents also suffer from displacement parking on a daily basis, due 
to the overspill from the nearby existing CPZ zone and surveys have shown that 
parking stress is high during the daytime with few opportunities of finding a space.  
As the majority of Norfolk Road residents that responded to the questionnaire voted 
in favour of parking controls it is proposed extend the Thornton Heath CPZ into 
Norfolk Road only. 
 

Are you in favour of a Controlled Parking Zone? 

  Street Name Responses 
Received 

Yes No 

Annsworthy Avenue 7 64% 4 57% 3 43% 
Beulah Grove 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Beulah Road 46 37% 19 41% 27 59% 
Buller Road 20 30% 1 17% 5 83% 
Buttonscroft Close 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Foulsham Road 8 33% 3 38% 5 62% 
Grange Park Road 19 30% 1 5% 18 95% 
Heath Road 21 21% 6 29% 15 71% 
Hobart Gardens 10 53% 0 0 10 100% 
Kitchener Road 7 11% 1 14% 6 86% 
Luna Road 16 27% 0 0 16 100% 
Milner Road 13 41% 0 0 13 100% 
Manchester Road 7 17% 0 0 7 100% 
Natal Road 9 24% 1 11% 8 89% 
Norfolk Road 15 32% 9 60% 6 40% 
Parchmore Road 7 15% 1 14% 6 86% 
Roberts Close 2 0 0 0 0 0 
Woodville Road 32 36% 5 16% 27 84% 
TOTAL: 225 30% 52 23% 169 75% 

Page 21



3.18 The majority of respondents from Annsworthy Avenue are in favour of an 
introduction of a CPZ in their street, however, the majority of the neighbouring 
streets are not. It is recommended therefore, that a CPZ should not be introduced in 
Annsworthy Avenue because it is a narrow cul-de-sac and 90% of the properties 
have driveways, this means there are no spaces for bays to be introduced. 
 

3.19 However, the council does recognise there are parking issues at the junction of   
Annsworthy Avenue with Grange Park Road, making it difficult for residents to     
enter and exit the cul-de-sac and also causing a problem for regular refuse collection 
to be made on a regular basis. It is therefore recommended that Annsworthy Avenue 
to be added to the council’s waiting restriction list for investigation. 
 

3.20 The introduction of a new CPZ requires the making of a Traffic Management Order. 
The legal process for making a Traffic Management Order requires formal 
consultation to take place in the form of Public Notices published in the London 
Gazette and a local newspaper (Croydon Guardian).  Although not a legal 
requirement, this Council also fixes street notices to lamp columns in the vicinity of 
the proposed scheme and writes to occupiers who are directly affected to inform as 
many people as possible of the proposals. 
 

3.21 Official bodies such as the Fire Brigade, The Pedestrian Association, Age UK and 
bus operators are consulted under the terms of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.  Additional bodies, up to 27 in 
total, are consulted depending on the relevance of the proposals. 
 

3.22 Once the notices have been published, the public has 21 days to comment or     
object to the proposals. If no relevant objections are received, the Traffic             
Management Order may then be made. Any relevant objections received             
following the giving of public notice will be considered by the Executive Director  of 
Place and may be referred to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee for 
consideration and onward recommendation to the Cabinet Member for                 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration. 

 
 
4 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 The required capital expenditure will be funded via an allocation within the TfL LIP 

grant funding allocated to Croydon for 2019/20. Total funding of £75k is included for 
controlled parking schemes in 2019/20 with £57k remaining.  Attached to the papers 
of this meeting is a summary of the overall financial impact of this and other 
applications for approval at this meeting. If all applications were approved there 
would be funding of £2k remaining in 2019/20. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



4.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 
4.2 The effect of the decision 
4.2.1 The cost of introducing controlled parking into Norfolk Road has been estimated at 

£9,000.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, lines and a contribution 
towards the legal costs. 

4.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available capital budgets for 2019/20.  
 
4.3 Risks 
4.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the design 

and legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the parking 
bays and the supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the new 
Highways Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were introduced 
under separate contractual arrangements. 

 
4.4 Options 
4.4.1  An alternative option is to introduce a Residents Only parking scheme. Virtually all 

permit schemes in the borough are Shared-Use with “Pay by Phone” Ringo users 
and this offers the greatest flexibility for drivers who may be visitors to residents 
and businesses in the area. 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from Report 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 0  0  0  0 
         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  57  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  9  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 48  0  0  0 

Page 23



 
4.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
4.5.1 If controlled parking is introduced future income will be generated from the 

purchase of resident/business permits, paid for parking (Pay by Phone), together 
with the revenue generated from the enforcement of these controls, through the 
issue of Penalty Charge Notices (PCN). Therefore, CPZ schemes have typically 
been proven to be self-financing usually within 4 years of introduction. 

 
 Approved by: F Wright, Head of Finance (Place) 
 
 
5. COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
5.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law  comments on behalf of the Director of 

Law and Governance Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power 
to implement the changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local 
authority the power to make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking 
by designating on-street parking places, charging for their use and imposing 
waiting and loading restrictions on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or 
otherwise.  

 
5.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 

9, Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local 
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 
1996 Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
5.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under 

that Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be 
exercised so far as practicable having regard to the following matters:- 
• The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
• The effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
• The national air quality strategy. 
• The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

• Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 

5.4 The Council must have proper regard to the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and 
specifically document its analysis of all relevant section 122 considerations when 
reaching any decision. The Council needs to comply with the necessary 
requirements of the Local Authorities Traffic Order Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 by giving the appropriate notices and receiving 

Page 24



representations.  Such representations must be considered before a final decision 
is made. 

 
 Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of 

the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 
 
6. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 
6.1 Enforcement of new parking schemes will require increased enforcement duties by 

Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can be 
undertaken using existing resources. 
 
Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 

 
 

7. CUSTOMER IMPACT 
 
7.1 The proposed introduction of parking controls into Norfolk Road is in response to 

support from local residents for a parking scheme.  
 
7.2 Occupiers of all residential and business premises in the area were consulted to 

ensure that all those potentially affected by the proposals were given the 
opportunity to give their views. Parking controls are only introduced in the area 
where the majority of residents are in favour of a scheme. The proposals are 
therefore likely to be seen as a positive move by the Council and should improve 
residents’ and businesses’ views of the work carried out by the Borough. 

 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

 
8.1 An initial Equalities Assessment (EA) has been carried out and it is considered that 

a Full EA is not required. 
 
 
9. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
9.1 Parking schemes are designed so that the signing is kept to a minimum to reduce 

the environmental impact. Narrow 50mm wide lines can be used in environmentally 
sensitive and conservation areas. 

 
 
10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
10.1 The fact that uniformed Civil Enforcement Officers will be regularly patrolling the 

area should have a deterrent effect on crime. 
 

Page 25



 
11. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 The Council recommends to introduce a new controlled parking scheme in Norfolk 

Road. Therefore the Council proposes to issue a public notice of the Traffic 
Management Order of the proposed scheme and, subject to no objections 
received, to make the necessary Traffic Management Order. It is considered that 
parking controls will improve parking conditions for residents and visitors whilst 
improving safety and access. 

 
 
12. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
12.1 The alternative option would be not to proceed with publication of the public notice 

and formal consultation but this would not accord with the expressed preference of 
the majority of those who responded to this informal consultation. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR   Huda Wahab, Traffic Engineer,  
   Parking Design, Highway Improvements, 

Streets, 020 8726 6000   
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager 
   Parking Design, Highway Improvements, 

Streets, 020 8667 8229 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  Consultation Documents 

Page 26



 
         
The Occupier 
  
 
 
Important Parking Consultation 
Controlled Parking Proposal 
Questionnaire  

Place Department  
Highway Improvements 

Parking Design 
6th Floor, Zone C 

Bernard Weatherill House 
Croydon 

CR0 1EA 
Tel/Typetalk: 020 8726 6000 

Minicom: 020 8760 5797 
  

Contact: Parking Design 
Parking.Design@croydon.gov.uk 

     Tel: 020 8667 8258 
 Our Ref: PD/HW/7TH 

Date:  28 May 2019 
Dear Owner/Occupier,  
Controlled Parking Zone Consultation – Norfolk Road Area.  
I am writing to ask for your views on the possibility of introducing a Controlled Parking Zone 
(CPZ) into the area shown on the enclosed map, which includes your road.             The 
consultation is a direct response to a petition received from residents of Norfolk Road, 
requesting that the Council introduce a controlled parking scheme to address the parking 
problems in this area. 
Legislation requires that we have regard to various factors in making a decision on whether 
an area should have a CPZ introduced. These include the views of owners and occupiers 
of properties but also the need for maintaining the free movement of traffic including public 
service vehicles, reasonable access to premises and the effect on the local amenities. This 
is why your views are important and we would be grateful if you could complete the 
attached questionnaire.  Once completed, please return it in the enclosed pre-paid 
envelope by Friday, 21 June 2019.  
The existing neighbouring Thornton Heath CPZ operates between 9am and 5pm, Monday 
to Saturday. Any proposed CPZ in the Norfolk Road area will mirror these operational 
times.    During the period of operation, parking is only permitted within parking bays with a 
valid permit or if motorists have paid via the RingGo ‘pay by phone’ system.  Residents and 
businesses within the zone boundary are eligible to purchase parking permits.   
All questionnaire responses received by 21 June 2019 will be presented in a report to 
Executive Director of Place to consider whether or not to proceed with the formal 
consultation on the CPZ scheme or whether to refer the matter to the next scheduled 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee meeting for consideration and onward 
recommendation to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Regeneration (Job 
share) for decision. 
Please do not hesitate to contact the project engineer, Huda Wahab, on 020 8667 8258 or 
by email huda.wahab@croydon.gov.uk if you require further information or clarification on 
this consultation. Yours faithfully,  

  
David Wakeling   Parking Design Manager – Highway Improvements 
 

Page 27



Please complete this questionnaire and return it in the enclosed pre-paid 
envelope to reach us by Friday, 21 June 2019. 

Name         ………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Address*     ………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
* Without this information your vote will not be counted. This information will be used 
only for the purpose of this consultation. We will only use responses from occupiers 
within the proposed area shown on the attached plan – one response per household 
and returned using the official pre-paid envelope provided. 
 
1. Are you in favour of extending the Thornton Heath CPZ into your road?   
 Please choose one option only by putting an ‘X’ in the appropriate box. 
 

Yes, the zone should be extended      
 
 

No, controlled parking is not needed    

Comments: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The 
results 
of the 
consult
ation 
will be 

presented in a report to the Traffic Management Advisory Committee 
for consideration at its next meeting at 6.30pm on 16 October 2019 in 
the Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon. The report will be available 
to view online on 9 October using the following link: 
www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes/committees  
 

Please return by Friday, 21 June 2019  
           using the pre-paid envelope provided.

Parking Consultation: Norfolk Road Area - QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

 

Page 28

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes/committees


 
 

 
1. What is a Controlled Parking Zone? 

This is an area where parking activities are controlled by waiting restrictions (yellow lines) and 
parking bays. 

2. At what times will the restrictions apply? 
The proposed scheme’s hours of operation will mirror those of the existing neighbouring 
Controlled Parking Zone (i.e. 9am – 5pm). Most existing zones in the Borough operate Monday 
to Saturday and it is proposed to consult occupiers on this. 

3. How long would I be able to park for during operational hours? 
Permit holders and Disabled Blue Badge holders will be able to park for an unlimited period 
within parking bays, providing a valid permit/Blue Badge is displayed. 

4. Who is eligible for parking permits? 
Any business with a business address within the zone and any resident with a vehicle 
registered at an address (if planning conditions do not forbid the issuing of parking permits) 
within the zone would be eligible for a parking permit. Information on how to apply for a permit 
will be sent to all consultees in due course if it is decided to proceed with the scheme. 

5. What about our visitors? 
Visitors would only need to pay for parking during the hours of operation of the zone. During 
operational hours, visitors must pay via the cashless pay by phone RingGo system or 
purchase a Resident Visitor Permit (obtained via the resident they are visiting using the 
cashless RingGo system, usually at a lower rate, depending on the length of stay, than the 
normal daily tariff). 

6. Why can’t we have “resident only” parking? 
 The shared-use Permit / Pay by phone scheme proposed is more flexible, allowing visitors, 

including customers of local businesses and tradespeople, to park. The permit cost is 
subsidised by Pay by phone users. Existing shared-use schemes provide residents more 
opportunity to park during the hours of operation than unregulated parking as the majority of 
commuters are reluctant to pay for parking. 

7. Is this not just a money making scheme? 
 It is a legal requirement that parking schemes are self-financed as no funding is available from 

Council Tax for these types of proposals.  In outer areas, such as this proposed area, income 
levels are lower than town centre locations where parking demand is higher.  Charges ensure 
that implementation and administration / enforcement costs can be covered within 5 to 10 
years. 

8. Please take note of the following information on the proposed changes to permit 
charges:                                                                                                                           

 Permit charges are currently being reviewed and from October 2019 are proposed to be 
based on vehicle emissions. Although the following charges for residents’ permits have been 
agreed through the Council’s Informal Cabinet Committee in March they are subject to formal 
consultation in which any objections would need to be considered before they are 
implemented.   
 
 
 
 
 

Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) – Frequently Asked Questions 
 

Page 29



[Type here] 
 

The charges for residents’ permits are proposed to be as follows: 
 

Vehicle registration 
from March 2001   CO2 emission (g/km) Proposed new charge 

Band 1 < 1 £6.50 
Band 2 1 – 75 £65 
Band 3 76 – 165 £104 
Band 4 166 – 225 £146 
Band 5 > 225 £300 

Before March 2001 n/a £300 

It is proposed that there will be a surcharge for the second permit of £50. 
(Please note that proposed changes to all permits including Business Permits and Visitor 
permits are currently subject to formal consultation and details can be obtained by visiting 
the Croydon website using the following link and viewing public notices in May 2019: 
www.croydon.gov.uk/transportandstreets/parking/prcpr ) 

9. Where would parking bays and yellow lines be marked? 
Parking bays would be marked on the carriageway in safe locations and away from junctions 
and dropped crossings. Yellow line waiting restrictions would be introduced at locations where 
parking would be hazardous or cause obstruction. 

10. Can you guarantee me a parking space outside my house? 
It is not possible to guarantee anyone a particular space on the public highway. 

11. How can it be ensured that motorists parking in the zone park legitimately? 
Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs) will patrol the roads within the zone during the controlled 
hours. CEOs can issue a Penalty Charge Notice (parking ticket) to any vehicle that is parked in 
a manner that contravenes parking regulations e.g. parking on a yellow line or within a parking 
bay without displaying a valid permit/pay and display ticket. 

12. Will I be able to park across my driveway? 
 Yes, but only outside the controlled hours. It is not possible to mark bays across driveways as 

this would legalise obstruction. 
13. What if I do not support the introduction of controlled parking? 

Vote ‘No’ on the enclosed questionnaire - if the majority of respondents vote against 
controlled parking then a scheme is unlikely to go ahead in the area. If the majority of 
respondents are in favour of a scheme there would be an opportunity to make further 
comments or object to the proposals at the Public Notice (detailed design) Stage when the 
scheme is formally advertised in the Croydon Guardian, by on-street notices and on the 
Council website. Please note that if the majority of respondents in a small part of the 
consultation area are in favour of parking controls, then a recommendation could be made 
to proceed with the design of a scheme in this area / road alone. 

14. What happens next? 
The results of the consultation will be presented in a report to the Executive Director of Place 
to consider whether or not to proceed with the formal consultation on the CPZ scheme or 
whether to refer the matter to the next scheduled Traffic Management Advisory Committee 
(TMAC) meeting for consideration and onward recommendation to the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport & Regeneration (Job Share) for decision.  If the matter is referred to 
the next TMAC meeting, which is scheduled to take place on 16 October 2019 at 6:30pm in the 
Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon, any reports will be available to view 5 working days prior 
to the scheduled meeting by using the following link 

www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes. 

Page 30

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/transportandstreets/parking/prcpr
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes


W E

S

N

©

JOB NAME

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE

DRAWING NO

NORFOLK ROAD AREA

PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE BOUNDARY.

HW DJW NTS

August 2019

PD - 405a

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

REVISION

-

STATUS

-

PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE

KEY:

EXISTING CONTROLLED PARKING AREA

CONSULTATION BOUNDARY

P
age 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
29c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
223

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Heath Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
ROSS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
BURTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
32 to 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
RESERVOIR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
2 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
39b

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
51b

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
GRANGE PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
51a

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
ROBERTS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
8b

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Greenlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Nyima

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Grangewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
MILNER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
WOODVILLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Hythe Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
FOULSHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
HOBART GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
ANNSWORTHY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
HUNTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
NATAL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
KITCHENER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
8c

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
GRANGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
83a

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
BULLER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
8d

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
85a

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
46a

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
HYTHE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
HAMILTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
MERSHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
3c

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
3d

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
5 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
3b

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
26 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
10 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Heath

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Atlanta

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Sunday School

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
73a

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Barnes

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
17 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
36a

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Fernham

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Beulah Nursery and

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Infant School

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
2e

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
82a

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
82b

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
COATES CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
SANDFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
84b

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
55e

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
BEULAH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
55b

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
50a

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
WINDSOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
NORFOLK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
HEATH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
BEDSER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
34to48

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
55a

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
WYCHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
55c

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
76h

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
76c

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
22A

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
Sandes Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
BUTTONSCROFT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
St Paul's

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
22B

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Ashleigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
MP 8.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
14 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Beulah

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
SANDFIELD PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Junior School

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Lord Napier

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Childrens Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
92a

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Church Of God

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
New Testament

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
41b

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
Thornton

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Parchmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
ST PAUL'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
37d

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
NORWICH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
60a

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Motcombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Hill Top

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
LUNA

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
St Paul's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
LIVERPOOL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Berwick

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
MANCHESTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Elmhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Hamilton

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
FURZE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
GRANGE PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
29e

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
27f

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
29d

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
29f

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
27l

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
27g

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
27h

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
27k

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
27j

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
Deal

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
BELLE VUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
BULGANAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
64b

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
64a

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Thornton

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
29 to 31

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
21b

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
MELFORT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
SANDFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
MELFORT

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
SANDFIELD GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
CAMDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
NORBURY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
CAMDEN GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
CAMDEN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
CAREW ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
 60

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
237

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
LENHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
74a

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
BULLER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
HYTHE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
Spring Ho

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
6 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
10c

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
10b

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
Beulah Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
BEULAH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
139 to 145

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
FOUNTAIN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
Queensbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
PARCHMORE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
2A

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
51a

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
1f

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
1d

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
NORBURY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
PARCHMORE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
LIVINGSTONE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
PARCHMORE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
BEULAH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
BENSHAM GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
CAMDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
FERNHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
WOODVILLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
NORBURY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
OBAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
BROOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
Proposed Controlled

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
Parking Zone

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY  COMMITTEE  

16 OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: CECIL ROAD AND AURELIA ROAD (PART) – 
RESULTS OF STATUTORY CONSULTATION ON THE 
PROPOSED CHANGE OF OPERATIONAL HOURS OF 

A CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE (CPZ) 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Planning and 
Environment 

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Stuart King, Acting Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share)  

WARDS:                    West Thornton 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

This report is in accordance with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan Feb 2018 
• The Local Implementation Plan; 3.6 Croydon Transport policies 
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 3, 4 and 6 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43. 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
These proposals can be contained within the available budget. 

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: n/a 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Acting 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) that 
they:- 
 

1.1 Consider the responses received to the formal consultation on the proposed 
change of operational hours of the West Thornton CPZ which comprises of Cecil 
Road and the section of Aurelia Road between Mitcham Road and Lavender Road. 

 
1.2 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to change the hours of operation in the 

West Thornton Parking Zone to 8am – 8pm, Monday – Sunday, as shown on 
drawing PD-396. 

 
1.3 Inform the objectors and supporters of the above decision. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report considers the results of the statutory consultation on the proposed change of 

operational hours of the West Thornton CPZ in Cecil Road and part of Aurelia Road, 
which comprises of shared-use Permit / Paid for parking bays and mainly single yellow 
lines. 

 
2.2 It is recommended that the Council proceeds with the alteration of the operational hours 

of the West Thornton CPZ from a 9am – 5pm, Mon – Sat to an 8am – 8pm, Mon – Sun 
operation as shown on drawing no. PD-396.  
 

2.3 On 16 September 2019 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 
2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was appropriate 
to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.2 above to the Traffic 
Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and determination to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share). 

 
 
3 DETAIL 
 
3.1 A petition was received last year from residents of Cecil Road requesting that the 

existing controlled parking zone operational period change from 9am to 5pm, Monday to 
Saturday to 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday to help improve parking conditions during 
the evening and on Sundays.  

 
3.2 After 5pm residents have complained to the Council that there is currently a lack of 

available parking and apparently due to parking mainly associated with residents living 
outside the zone such as those of Mitcham Road. This is causing problems in the area 
and residents are finding that they frequently are unable to park close to their home due 
to space being occupied by non-permit vehicles after 5pm when the parking controls end 
and on Sundays. 

 
3.3 Surveys have confirmed that parking stress is higher after 5pm and on Sundays when 

parking is free and this appears to be mainly due to residents in the local area taking 
advantage of this free parking. 

 
3.4 In May 2019, 216 sets of consultation documents which comprised of a letter, explaining 

the reasons for the consultation, a plan of the consultation area, a Frequently Asked 
Questions factsheet and a questionnaire were sent to addresses within the existing CPZ 
area.  A total of 82 questionnaires were returned, representing a 38% response rate 
which is considered a good response for an informal consultation exercise of this type. 

 
3.5 The table below shows in detail the road by road responses to both Questions 1 and 2 

as part of the informal consultation. 

Page 34



 

 

Street Name   Are you in favour of change of hours 
in the existing CPZ? 

  No. of  
responses 

Yes - change the 
hours Mon-Sun 
8am-8pm 

No – keep the 
existing 
arrangement 

      
Cecil Road  63 48 76% 15 24% 
Aurelia Road (Mitcham Road 

to Lavender Road) 19 8 42% 11 58% 

TOTAL 82 56 69% 26 31% 
 

3.6 Overall, the majority of respondents 56 (69%) indicated that they were in favour  
of the change of hours. 26 (31%) did not support the change of hours to Monday to 
Sunday 8am to 8pm.   

 
3.7 Due to the positive response to the informal consultation it was agreed at the Traffic 

Management Advisory Committee on 24 July 2019 to undertake formal consultation with 
a view to consider the change of operational parking hours in the West Thornton CPZ 
subject to outcome of the formal consultation. It is worth pointing out that although the 
respondents from Aurelia Road were not in favour of changes to the current zone it 
would be impractical to split such a small zone without the result of driver confusion and 
increased parking stress in Aurelia Road outside the 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday 
period. 

 
 
4 STATUTORY CONSULTATION 
 
4.1  The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement this Council also fixes street notices to lamp 
columns in the  vicinity of the proposed scheme and writes to occupiers who are directly 
affected to inform as many people as possible of the proposals. 

 
4.2  Official bodies such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, The 

Pedestrian Association, Age UK, The Owner Drivers’ Society, The Confederation of 
Passenger Transport and bus operators are consulted under the terms of the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.  
Additional bodies, up to 27 in total, are consulted depending on the relevance of the 
proposals. 

 
4.3 Once the notices have been published the public has 21 days to comment or object to 

the proposals. If no relevant objections are received, subject to agreement to the 
delegated authority sought by the recommendations, the Traffic Management Order is 
then made.  Any relevant objections received following the giving of public notice will be 
considered by the Executive Director of Place and may be referred to the Traffic 
Management Advisory Committee if the Executive Director in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment considers it appropriate for any other 
reason. 

 
 

Page 35



 

5 OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES  
 

5.1 A total of 7 objections and one petition of objection has been received from residents in 
the Cecil Road area. The objections are listed below with the officer responses following. 
 
Objection 1  

5.2 An objection from a resident of Cecil Road was raised on the grounds that: 
• Current restrictions are serving its purpose. 
• There are enough parking spaces available every day so there is no need to 

increase the hours of operation. 
    

 Objection 2   
5.3 An objection from a resident of Aurelia Road was raised on the grounds that: 

• Currently after 5pm there are always parking spaces available 
• Aurelia Road and Cecil Road are residential roads and do not require longer parking 

controls. 
 

Objection 3 
5.4 An objection from a resident of Cecil Road was raised on the grounds that: 

• I vote against it because my daughter helps me with house chores and needs to 
park her car. 
 

 Objection 4 
5.5 An objection from a resident of Cecil Road was raised on the grounds that: 

•  The rent and council tax we pay is high enough, so to pay after 5pm will make it 
difficult for us. 

 
Objection 5 

5.6 An objection from a resident of Lavender Road has been raised on the grounds that: 
• Parking has not been a problem since parking restrictions was introduced in Aurelia 

Road and Cecil Road. 
• The new proposal will make it impossible for myself and family to park outside my 

own home.  
 
          Objection 6 
5.7     An objection from a resident of Lavender Road was made on the grounds that: 

• I object to 8am to 8pm Monday to Sunday parking controls because more cars will 
park in my road. 

• Visitors will have to pay after 5pm.  
• Changing the times will not resolve the parking issues in Cecil Road. 

 
          Objection 7 
5.8     The seventh objection from a resident within the zone was on the grounds that: 

• This is extremely prohibitive to visitors. 
• The existing parking controls are already working and no need to change the 

operational hours.  
 

5.9     Petition of objection   
A petition was received from local residents including those that live in neighbouring 
roads and do not live in the West Thornton CPZ.  
The petition was signed by a total of 55 local area residents objecting to changing the 
hours of operation to 8am to 8pm Monday to Sunday and to keep the existing 

Page 36



 

arrangements of Monday to Saturday 9am to 5pm. 24 signatures being from 
neighbouring roads. 
 

5.10    Responses   
  Residents and businesses were given two controlled parking options when the informal 

consultation was carried out. These were to keep the existing parking controls of 9am to 
5pm Monday to Saturday, or change it to 8am to 8pm Monday to Sunday (matching 
controls currently in place and being extended on the east side of Thornton Road). The 
responses showed that the majority (69%) of respondents supported Monday to Sunday 
8am to 8pm, as opposed to 31% who supported the existing parking controls Monday to 
Saturday 9am to 5pm to remain. 

           
5.11   The current parking controls within the existing CPZ are having positive effects during 

the hours of operation. However when residents return home from work after 5pm when 
parking is free, they struggle to find a parking space. The petition was signed by 146 
residents from 140 households (of the 215 households) within the CPZ have signed for 
parking controls to be changed to Monday to Sunday 8am to 8pm, to help alleviate 
parking issues for residents in the evenings and on Sundays.  Surveys have confirmed 
that there is parking stress in the West Thornton CPZ during the evening and on 
Sundays with over 90% occupied parking bays. 

 
5.12    A controlled parking zone is introduced to help local residents with parking issues. The 

current annual £80 charge for the first resident permit within a household (increasing to 
£104 from October 2019 with emission based permits for the majority of cars emitting 
between 76 and 166 g/km) equates to £1.54 per week for parking. However, if residents 
within the controlled parking zone do not wish to pay for a parking permit then they must 
either pay by phone or seek alternative parking during the controlled hours.  

 
5.13 Council Tax income does not contribute towards parking controls, parking income can 

only be used for transport related Council expenditure such as the concessionary fare 
system (Freedom pass). The police are funded by central government with a 
contribution from Council Tax and this is a legal requirement over which the Council has 
no control.   

  
5.14    Lavender Road being a neighbouring road to Aurelia Road and Cecil Road was included 

in the informal consultation when the Council proposed to introduce a new controlled 
parking zone. However, Lavender Road had a low response rate and those that did 
respond opposed to be included in the new controlled parking zone.  
 

5.15   Support for the Proposal 
        With a petition from 146 residents from 140 households (of the 215 households within 

the CPZ) requesting to change the parking controls in the area to Monday to Sunday 
8am to 8pm, and during the consultation two emails were received from residents of 
Cecil Road expressing support for the scheme. The messages stated that: 
• There are limited spaces available for the Cecil Road residents after 5pm as that is a 

common time working people return. 
• When will the new parking hours be implemented? 

 

Page 37



 

5.16    Recommendation 
Site surveys were conducted during the week by Council officers observing parking 
stress after 5pm in Aurelia Road and Cecil Road, with limited vacant spaces after the 
controls had ended at 5pm.  In view of the site visits conducted by Council officers and a 
majority of support for the change of operational parking hours, with the low number of 
objections (relative to the number of occupiers in this area) and the responses to those 
objections given above, it is recommended to proceed with the scheme as proposed and 
shown in drawing No. PD-396 as it will ensure the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities. 
 
 

6. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The required capital expenditure will be funded via an allocation within the TfL LIP grant 
funding allocated to Croydon for 2019/20. Total funding of £75k is included for controlled 
parking schemes in 2019/20 with £57k remaining.  Attached to the papers of this 
meeting is a summary of the overall financial impact of this and other applications for 
approval at this meeting. If all applications were approved there would be funding of £2k 
remaining in 2019/20. 

7.1  Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 
 
7.2 The effect of the decision 
7.2.1 The cost of amending the West Thornton CPZ has been estimated at £3,400.This 

includes the supply and installation of signs, lines, and amendments to the Pay by 
Phone system and a contribution towards the legal costs. 

 
7.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available TfL LIP budget for 2019/20. 
 
7.2.3 The ongoing costs of maintaining the controlled parking will be managed within existing 

revenue budgets. 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  57  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  3  0  0  0 

                  Remaining Budget  54  0  0  0 

Page 38



 

 
8.3 Risks 
8.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the design and 

legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the bays and the 
supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the new Highways 
Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were introduced under separate 
contractual arrangements 

 
9.4 Options 
9.4.1  An alternative option is to retain the existing 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday controls 

and to monitor parking and complaints for future review.  However, the results from the 
informal consultation indicate that the majority of residents want action to help improve 
parking conditions during the evening and on Sundays. 

 
10.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
10.5.1 If longer parking controls are introduced future income will be generated from Pay-By 

Phone takings and permit sales, together with enforcement of these controls through 
vehicle removals and Penalty Charge Notices.  CPZ schemes have proven to be self-
financing, usually within 4 years of introduction. 

 
 Approved by: F Wright, Head of Finance (Place) 
 
 
11 COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  

 
11.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director of Law 

and Governance that Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power to 
implement the changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local authority 
the power to make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking by designating 
on-street parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting and loading 
restrictions on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or otherwise.  

 
11.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 9, 

Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local Authorities 
Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 1996 
Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
11.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under that 

Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and 
other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate parking 
facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as practicable 
having regard to the following matters:- 

 
• The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
• The effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
• The national air quality strategy. 

Page 39



 

• The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 
securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

• Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 
11.4 The Council must have proper regard to the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and 

specifically document its analysis of all relevant section 122 considerations when 
reaching any decision. 

 
    Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf of the 

Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

12. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT 
 
12.1 Extending the operational parking hours in the existing controlled parking zone will 

require increased enforcement duties by the Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is 
anticipated that this additional enforcement can be undertaken using existing 
resources. 
 
Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 

 
 
13. EQUALITIES IMPACT  
 
13.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required. 
 

 
14. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
14.1 Evidence from nearby roads where controls have recently been introduced has shown 

that reducing the density of parking, especially during the daytime, has resulted in far 
easier street cleaning and therefore a general improvement in the environment. 

 
 
15. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
15.1     Waiting restrictions at junctions are normally placed at a minimum of 10 metres from 

the junction, which is the distance up to which the Police can place Fixed Penalty 
Charge Notices to offending vehicles regardless of any restrictions on the ground. 

 
 

16. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
16.1 The recommendation is to extend the controlled parking hours in the Cecil Road area 

since a majority of respondents in this area voted in favour of longer parking controls. 
 

 

Page 40



 

17. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
 17.1 An alternative option is not to change the operational parking hours in the CPZ. This 

could have a detrimental effect on residents returning home from work after 5pm and 
would continue to suffer with parking issues. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR   Paul Tarrant, Traffic Engineer,  
   Parking Design, High Improvements, Streets, 020 

8726 6000     (Ext. 88256) 
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager 
   Parking Design, High Improvements, Streets, 020 

8726 6000     (Ext. 88229) 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  None  

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



P
L

A
C

E
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
JO

 N
E

G
R

IN
I  -  E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
  D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

P
O

  B
O

X
  N

o
. 1462

C
R

O
Y

D
O

N
C

R
9

  1
W

X
D

ra
w

in
g

 R
e

f.

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 - T

R
A

F
F

IC
  D

E
S

IG
N

D
ra

w
n

A
p

ril 2019
D

a
te.

S
ca

le.N
T

S
C

he
cked

P
T

D
JW

0
0

R
ev.

W
e

st T
h

o
rn

ton Z
one

W
e

st T
h

o
rn

to
n

 C
P

Z
 boundary

e
xistin

g
 p

a
rking bays

e
xistin

g
 d

o
u

b
le

 ye
llow

 lines

E
xistin

g
 d

isa
b

led bays

P
D

-396

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY  COMMITTEE  

16 OCTOBER 2019 

SUBJECT: DUNHEVED ROADS AREA – RESULTS OF INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSED HOURS OF AN 

EXTENSION TO THE EXISTING CONTROLLED 
PARKING ZONE (CPZ) 

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Stuart King, Acting Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share)  

WARDS:                    West Thornton 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

This report is in accordance with objectives to improve the safety and reduce 
obstructive parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan Feb 2018 
• The Local Implementation Plan; 3.6 Croydon Transport policies 
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 3, 4 and 6 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43. 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
These proposals can be contained within the available budget. 

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.: n/a 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Acting 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) that 
they:- 

1.1 Consider the responses received to the informal consultation on the proposed 
hours of operation of new parking controls in Dunheved Roads North, West and 
South, Dunheved Close and Sharland Close. 

1.2 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report, to proceed with formal consultation on 
extending the North Permit Zone into this area with 9am to 5pm, Monday to 
Saturday controls. 

1.3 If formal consultation is agreed, delegate to the Highway Improvement Manager, 
Public Realm Directorate the authority to give the notice. 

1.4 Agree that the results of the formal consultation are either to be reported to this 
Committee in order for it to make appropriate Recommendations to the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration or through a delegated 
authorisation report to the Director of Place. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report considers the results of the informal consultation on the proposed hours of 

operation of new parking controls in the Dunheved Roads area as part of an extension 
to the North Permit Zone.  

 
2.2 It is recommended that the Council proceeds to the formal consultation stage to 

introduce 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday controls into Dunheved Roads North, West 
and South, Dunheved Close and Sharland Close with shared-use Permit / Pay by 
Phone bays. 

 
2.3 On 16 September 2019 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 

2016, the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was 
appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 1.2 above to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share). 

 
 
3 DETAIL 
 
3.1 A petition was received from the Croydon Mosque as part of the formal consultation 

process for the introduction of 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday parking controls in the 
Dunheved Roads area requesting that the times should be amended to 9am to 5pm, 
Monday to Saturday.  This followed a concern from the mosque that the longer controls 
would adversely affect activities that mainly take place during the evenings and at 
weekends.  A Ward Councillor and Council Officer met with the mosque on 24 June 
2019 to discuss their concerns and find a potential solution. 

 
3.2 The Dunheved Roads area formed part of the proposed Keston Road area extension of 

the North Permit Zone with 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday controls matching existing 
controls in the nearby Sutherland Road area.  Occupiers in this area were consulted in 
the summer of 2018 and although the majority in the area voted for 8am to 8pm 
controls it was less clear in the Dunheved Roads area. 

 
3.3 In July 2019, 279 sets of consultation documents which comprised of a letter, 

explaining the reasons for the consultation, a Frequently Asked Questions factsheet 
and a questionnaire were sent to occupiers in Dunheved Roads North, West, South 
and Close and Sharland Close. A total of 47 questionnaires were returned, 
representing a 17% response rate.  Although this is a lower response rate than usual 
for an exercise of this type this there are reasons for this. There are a large number of 
HMOs (houses of multiple occupation) where residents are not living on a long term 
basis and therefore less likely to be affected by parking issues. The blocks of flats in 
the centre of this area all have adequate off-street parking and residents are therefore 
less likely to be concerned by on-street parking issues and a high proportion of the 
single dwellings which have off-street parking residents of which may also not be 
affected by the on-street parking situation. 

Page 46



 

3.4 The table below shows in detail the responses from the returned questionnaire. 
 

    Name No. of 
households 

No. of  
responses  
(% response) 

Mon - Sat,  
9am - 5pm (%) 

Mon - Sun,  
8am - 8pm (%) 

Dunheved Rd North 83 7 (8%) 4 (57%) 3 (43%) 
Dunheved Rd West 48 13 (27%) 11 (85%) 2 (15%) 
Dunheved Rd South 76 15 (20%) 15 (100%) 0 (0%) 
Dunheved Close 27 10 (37%) 7 (70%) 3 (30%) 
Sharland Close 45 2 (4%) 1 (50%) 1 (50%) 
TOTAL 279 47 (17%) 38 (81%) 9 (19%) 

 
3.5 Overall, the majority of respondents 38 (81%) indicated that they were in favour  

of Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm controls. 
 

3.6 The comments made by residents on the questionnaire included:  
• 30 minutes free parking required – 20 responses.          
• Preference for Monday to Friday controls or none at all – 3 responses.  
• Low or no charge for first permit issued at a household. 
• Preference of 8am to 8pm controls due to driveway obstruction issues.  
• Preference of 8am to 8pm controls if surrounding streets will have them. 
• Customers of the Great Western Hotel park on street when they have their 

own car park. 
• Request for 8.30am to 6.30pm controls. 
• Residents should not be charged to park outside their own homes. 
• Controls are not needed in this area. 
• Current parking causes a problem in Dunheved Close due to damage to 

fences – controls will help reduce this. 
• Residents in Dunheved Close voted against controls and the option of no 

controls should have been included in this consultation. 
• Hospital staff are charged too much to park on their grounds which is the 

main cause of the parking problems in surrounding roads. 
• This is a money making exercise for the Council. 
• Visitors should not need to pay for parking. 
• Permit parking only outside the 8am to 8pm preferred controls due to the 

Mosque. 
• Controls should help reduce litter on the streets. 
 

3.7 There were a number of comments that 30 minute free parking should be introduced in 
this area.  Currently 30 minute free parking is available for the on street Pay & Display 
bays along the London Road south of Mayday Road to boost trade for the businesses. 
Similar parking bays are present in district centres where there is a high turn-over of 
parking to help smaller businesses.  This type of parking is not available in residential 
streets as this could reduce the available parking for permit holders.  Also 30 minutes 
free parking is via obtaining a Pay & Display ticket.  No machines are proposed for this 
area and non-permit holders would be required to purchase time via the Pay by Phone 
RingGo app. RingGo apply a charge for each phone transaction which is currently 
funded by the Council. Due to the above points and fact there are currently no free 
parking available in Permit / Pay for areas, it is recommended not to incorporate a free 
parking period in this area. 

Page 47



 

 
3.8 The purpose of the consultation was to determine the preferred hours of operation and 

it is clear from the responses that the majority have voted for 9am to 5pm, Monday to 
Saturday controls matching the current controls in the North Permit Zone mainly on the 
east side of London Road.   

 
3.9 Leaving this area without any controls would not be a recommended option due to the 

fact controls are (or will shortly be) in place in all the surrounding roads – demand in 
parking would otherwise increase with a likelihood of more complaints concerning 
obstructive parking from residents.  Croydon University Hospital site is directly opposite 
this area which adds to the parking stress due to both workers and visitors attempting 
to find parking spaces in the vicinity.  For all of the above reasons it is proposed to 
introduce Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm parking controls in this area with a 
combination of parking bays and yellow line waiting restrictions in between. 
 
 

4 STATUTORY CONSULTATION 
 
4.1  The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement this Council also fixes street notices to lamp 
columns in the  vicinity of the proposed scheme and writes to occupiers who are 
directly affected to inform as many people as possible of the proposals. 

 
4.2  Official bodies such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain,  
         The Pedestrian Association, Age UK, The Owner Drivers’ Society, The Confederation 

of Passenger Transport and bus operators are consulted under the terms of the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996.  
Additional bodies, up to 27 in total, are consulted depending on the relevance of the 
proposals. 

 
4.3 Once the notices have been published the public has 21 days to comment or object to 

the proposals. If no relevant objections are received, subject to agreement to the 
delegated authority sought by the recommendations, the Traffic Management Order is 
then made.  Any relevant objections received following the giving of public notice will 
be considered by the Executive Director of Place and may be referred to the Traffic 
Management Advisory Committee if the Executive Director in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment considers it appropriate for any other 
reason. 

 
 
5 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
  The required capital expenditure will be funded via an allocation within the TfL LIP 

grant funding allocated to Croydon for 2019/20. Total funding of £75k is included for 
controlled parking schemes in 2019/20 with £57k remaining.  Attached to the papers of 
this meeting is a summary of the overall financial impact of this and other applications 
for approval at this meeting. If all applications were approved there would be funding of 
£2k remaining in 2019/20. 

 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

5.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  
 
 
 
 

 The effect of the decision 
 The cost o 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 The effect of the decision  
5.2.1 The cost of introducing parking controls in the Dunheved Roads area has been 

estimated at £28,000.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, lines, the 
introduction of the Pay by Phone system and a contribution towards the legal costs. 

5.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available capital budgets for 2019/20.  
 
5.3 Risks 
5.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the design and 

legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the bays and the 
supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the new Highways 
Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were introduced under separate 
contractual arrangements. 

 
5.4 Options 
5.4.1  The alternative option would be 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday controls, but this was 

rejected by the majority of occupiers in the Dunheved Roads area.   
 
5.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
5.5.1 Introducing parking controls in this area would result in income from permits, Pay by 

Phone payments and from Penalty Charge Notices. 
 
 Approved by: F Wright, Head of Finance (Place) 
 
 
6. COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
6.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law comments on behalf of the Director of Law 

and Governance that Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power to 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     

available 
        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  57  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  28  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 29  0  0  0 

Page 49



 

implement the changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local authority 
the power to make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking by designating 
on-street parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting and loading 
restrictions on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or otherwise.  

 
6.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 9, 

Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local Authorities 
Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 1996 
Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
6.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under that 

Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and 
other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and adequate parking 
facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be exercised so far as practicable 
having regard to the following matters:- 
• The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
• The effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
• The national air quality strategy. 
• The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

• Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 
6.4 The Council must have proper regard to the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and 

specifically document its analysis of all relevant section 122 considerations when 
reaching any decision. 

 
 Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate law on behalf of the 

Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
7. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 
7.1 Enforcement of extended parking controls will require increased enforcement duties by 

Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can be 
undertaken using existing resources. 
 
Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources.  

 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPACT 
 
8.1 The introduction of the proposed restriction hours in the Dunheved Roads area is 

proposed in response to support from local residents following the consultation. 
 
8.2 Occupiers of all residential and business premises in the area were consulted to 

ensure that all those directly affected by the proposals were given the opportunity to 
give their views.   

Page 50



 

 
8.3 There will be an opportunity at the formal consultation stage for members of the public 

to comment or object to the proposals and any material objections will be responded to 
in a report which may be considered by this committee. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPACT 

 
9.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required.  Specific equalities issues which may be 
raised as part of the formal consultation will be referenced within the officers’ response 
to those objections within the body of a future report. 

 
 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
10.1 The introduction of parking controls in the Dunheved Roads area should result in far 

easier street cleaning and a general improvement in the environment in these roads.  
The installation of posts will be minimised as far as practicable to reduce the impact of 
the parking scheme on the street scene. 

 
 
11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT 

  
11.1 Patrols by Civil Enforcement Officers in this area should have a positive effect on 

reducing crime levels. 
 
 
12. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1 The recommendations are to introduce Monday to Saturday, 9am to 5pm to Monday to 

controls as requested by a majority of respondents in this area.  
 
 
13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
13.1 Alternative option would be to introduce 8am to 8pm controls (rejected by the majority 

of occupiers in this area) or leave the area unrestricted.  Controls are being introduced 
in all surrounding roads from 14 October 2019 and to leave this area unrestricted will 
have the result of increasing parking stress for residents and for those visiting the 
Croydon Mosque. 

 

 
REPORT AUTHOR /    David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager,  
CONTACT OFFICER:   Parking Design, High Improvements, Streets, 020 

8726 6000     (Ext. 88229) 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  None  

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



R

O

A

D

F

A

I

R

G

R

E

E

N

G

D

N

S

.

L

A

K

E

H

A

L

L

 

 

R

O

A

D

T

O

R

R

I

D

G

E

V

F

U

R

T

H

E

R

F

I

E

L

D

R

A

M

S

E

Y

 

O

N

S

L

O

W

T

R

A

F

F

O

R

D

 

 

R

O

A

D

M

A

R

D

E

N

B
O

S
TO

N

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

L

I

M

P

S

F

I

E

L

D

 

 

 

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

R

 

 

O

 

 

A

 

 

D

H

A

R

C

O

U

R

T

G

O

N

V

I

L

L

E

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

S

I

L

K

E

N

M

A

R

E

N

E

T

T

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

F

A

I

R

H

O

L

M

E

 

 

R

O

A

D

G

R

E

E

N

S

I

D

E

 

 

R

O

A

D

M

I

D

H

U

R

S

T

 

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

C

L

O

S

E

F

I

V

E

A

C

R

E

S

U

T
H

E

R

L
A

N

D

 
 
 
 
 
 
R

O

A

D

W

E
N

T
W

O

R

T
H

 
 
 
 
R

O

A
D

P

E

M

D

E

V

O

N

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

P

L

A

C

E

O

A

K

W

O

O

D

L

Y

N

T

O

N

 

 

R

O

A

D

S

O

U

T

H

W

E

L

L

P
R

I
O

R
Y

 
 
 
R

O

A
D

D
O

N
A

L
D

 
 
 
 
R

O
A

D

S

T

A

N

L

E

Y

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

C

U

R

Z

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

O

A

K

W

O

O

D

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

 

 

S

O

U

T

H

W

E

L

L

I

N

G

T

O

N

 

C

A

M

P

B

E

L

L

 

 

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

M

A

Y

D

A

Y

 

 

 

R

O

A

D
C

R

O

S

S

L

A

N

D

FRANCIS

R

O

A

D

G

D

N

S

K

E

L

L

I

N

G

A

V

E

N

U

E

ROAD

ROAD

E

L

M

W

O

O

D

R

O

A

D

C

A

M

E

R

O

N

L

O

D

G

E

A

V

E

N

U

E

K

I

N

G

S

W

O

O

D

E

A

R

L

S

W

O

O

D

C

L

O

S

E

D

U

N

H

E

V

E

D

W

I

L

L

E

T

T

W

H

I

T

E

H

A

L

L

K

E

S

T

O

N

B

R

O

U

G

H

T

O

N

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

A

V

E

N

U

E

E

R

L

E

I

G

H

C

O

L

V

I

N

P

L

.

R

O

A

D

 

 

N

O

R

T

H

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

A

V

E

N

U

E

T

H

O

R

N

T

O

N

C

O

L

L

I

E

R

S

R

O

W

A

V

E

N

U

E

R

A

Y

M

E

A

D

A

L

M

A

 

P

L

A

C

E

R

 
 
O

 
 
A

 
 
D

P

E

N

S

H

U

R

S

T

H

A

S

L

E

M

E

R

E

W

O

O

D

C

R

O

F

T

 

 

R

O

A

D

V

I

E

W

 

 

R

O

A

D

M

E

A

D

O

WA

V

E

.

Q

U

E

E

N

S

W

O

O

D

B

U

X

T

O

N

 

 

R

O

A

D

F

R

A

N

T

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

L

A

K

E

H

A

L

L

R

O

A

D

J

A

M

A

I

C

A

N

O

R

M

A

N

 

 

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

Q

U

E

E

N

S

L
O

D
G

E
R

O

A

D

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

R

O

A

D

 

 

W

E

S

T

S

T

A

N

L

E

Y

 

G

R

O

V

E

W

O

R

T

L

E

Y

Y

O

R

K

R

O

A

D

CONSTANCE

F

O

R

D

C

L

.

L

 

O

 

N

 

D

 

O

 

N

R

 

O

 

A

 

D

S

 

T

.

 

 

 

J

 

A

 

M

T

E

R

B

C

A

N

U

R

Y

 

 

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

B
 
E

 
N

 
S

 
H

 
A

 
M

 
 
 
L

 
A

 
N

 
E

G

R

E

E

N

B

R

O

A

D

S

T

 

S

A

V

I

O

U

R

S

D

U

N

H

E

V

E

D

D

U

N

H

E

V

E

D

D

U

N

H

E

V

E

D

C

L

O

S

E

B

E

N

S

H

A

M

L

A

N

E

F
R

A
N

T

R

D

.

W

I

L

L

E

T

T

 

R

O

A

D

B

R

I

G

S

T

O

C

K

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

T

H

O

R

N

T

O

N

 

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

N2 & N  Permit  Zone

© Crown Copyright.  All rights reserved.  Croydon Council, Licence No: 100019257 2010

June 2019

Page 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
N2 8am to 8pm Monday - Sunday 

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
N  9am to 5pm Monday - Friday 



This page is intentionally left blank



Place Department 
Highway Improvements

Parking Design
6th Floor, Zone C

Bernard Weatherill House
Croydon

CR0 1EA
Tel/Typetalk: 020 8726 6000

Minicom: 020 8760 5797

The Occupier

Dunheved Roads North, South, 
West and Close and Sharland Close Contact: Parking Design

Parking.Design@croydon.gov.uk
     Tel: 020 8726 7100

Our Ref: PD/CS/369

Date:  12 July 2019

Dear Occupier,
Proposed Extension of a Controlled Parking Zone into Dunheved Roads, North, 
South, West and Close and Sharland Close
I am writing with respect of the proposal to extend parking controls into the Dunheved 
Roads area following the public notice which was published in March and the subsequent 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee meeting that took place on 2 May 2019. 
The committee agreed to extend parking controls in the Keston Road area which included 
the Dunheved Roads area and work to introduce parking bays, signs and yellow lines will 
commence over the coming few weeks.  The controls in this area are to operate between 
8am and 8pm, Monday to Sunday representing the majority choice of those that 
responded to the informal consultation which took place in the summer of 2018.
However, in the Dunheved Roads area it was less clear on what residents want and due 
to this and the low response rate to the consultation that took place last summer, it has 
been agreed to re-consult occupiers in the area to determine whether 8am to 8pm, 
Monday to Sunday or 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday controls should be introduced, 
matching controls on roads surrounding Croydon University Hospital.
I would be grateful if you could send your preference on the time that the zone should 
operate by filling in the attached questionnaire.  In order to help with your decision a 
Frequently Asked Questions sheet is enclosed.
Once completed, please return it in the enclosed pre-paid envelope by Friday, 9 August 
2019.  The results will be included in a delegated report to the Executive Director of Place 
and a decision made whether to proceed with 8am to 8pm, Monday to Sunday controls or 
9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday controls.  It is proposed that any objections to the 
subsequent Public Notice will be reported to the next available Traffic Management 
Advisory Committee meeting scheduled to be held 16 October 2019.
Please do not hesitate to contact Omar Tingling on 020 8726 6000 or by email 
omar.tingling@croydon.gov.uk if you require further information or clarification on this 
proposal.

Yours faithfully,

David Wakeling
Parking Design Manager – Highway Improvements 
cc:      West Thornton Ward Councillor

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



1. What is a Controlled Parking Zone?
This is an area where parking activities are controlled by waiting restrictions (yellow lines) 
and parking bays.

2. At what times will the restrictions apply?
The proposed scheme’s days and hours of operation will be decided by this consultation 
and will either mirror those of the existing controls on roads surrounding the Croydon 
University Hospital (Monday to Saturday 9am – 5pm) or roads to the west of London Road 
which are currently Monday to Sunday 8am to 8pm.

3. Why am I being consulted?
It is unclear on the days and hours of operation of the proposed parking controls the 
residents in this area wish to have, as the results of the original consultation undertaken in 
this area a year ago were inconclusive and in any case the response rate was very low.  
This consultation gives residents the final say on the operational days and hours.

4. How long would I be able to park for during operational hours?
Permit holders and Disabled Blue Badge holders will be able to park for an unlimited period 
within parking bays, providing a valid permit/Blue Badge is displayed.

5. Who is eligible for parking permits?
Any business with a business address within the zone and any resident with a vehicle 
registered at an address (if planning conditions do not forbid the issuing of parking permits) 
within the zone would be eligible for a parking permit. Information on how to apply for a 
permit will be sent to all consultees in due course if it is decided to proceed with the 
scheme.

6. What about our visitors?
Visitors would only need to pay for parking during the hours of operation of the zone. 
During operational hours, visitors must pay via the cashless pay by phone RingGo system 
or purchase a Resident Visitor Permit (obtained via the resident they are visiting using the 
cashless RingGo system, usually at a lower rate, depending on the length of stay, than the 
normal daily tariff).

7. Why can’t we have “resident only” parking?
The shared-use Permit / Pay by phone scheme proposed is more flexible, allowing visitors, 
including customers of local businesses and tradespeople, to park. The permit cost is 
subsidised by Pay by phone users. Existing shared-use schemes provide residents more 
opportunity to park during the hours of operation than unregulated parking as the majority 
of commuters are reluctant to pay for parking.

8. Is this not just a money making scheme?
It is a legal requirement that parking schemes are self-financed as no funding is available 
from Council Tax for these types of proposals.  In outer areas, such as this proposed area, 
income levels are lower than town centre locations where parking demand is higher.  
Charges ensure that implementation and administration / enforcement costs can be 
covered within 5 to 10 years.

9. Please take note of the following information on the proposed changes to permit 
charges:                                                                                                                          
Permit charges are currently being reviewed and from October 2019 are proposed to be 
based on vehicle emissions. Although the following charges for residents’ permits have 
been agreed through the Council’s Informal Cabinet Committee in March objections are to 
be responded to in a report to be considered by the Traffic Management Advisory 
Committee when they meet on 24 July 2019.  

Cont. overleaf

Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) – Frequently Asked Questions

Page 57



This report will be available to view 5 working days prior to the scheduled meeting by using 
the following link www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes.

The charges for residents’ permits are proposed to be as follows:

Vehicle registration
from March 2001   CO2 emission (g/km) Proposed new charge

Band 1 < 1 £6.50
Band 2 1 – 75 £65
Band 3 76 – 165 £104
Band 4 166 – 225 £146
Band 5 > 225 £300

Before March 2001 n/a £300

It is proposed that there will be a surcharge for the second permit of £50.
10. Where would parking bays and yellow lines be marked?

Parking bays would be marked on the carriageway in safe locations and away from 
junctions and dropped crossings. Yellow line waiting restrictions would be introduced at 
locations where parking would be hazardous or cause obstruction.

11. Can you guarantee me a parking space outside my house?
It is not possible to guarantee anyone a particular space on the public highway.

12. How can it be ensured that motorists parking in the zone park legitimately?
Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs) will patrol the roads within the zone during the controlled 
hours. CEOs can issue a Penalty Charge Notice (parking ticket) to any vehicle that is 
parked in a manner that contravenes parking regulations e.g. parking on a yellow line or 
within a parking bay without displaying a valid permit / making payment for parking via the 
RingGo Pay by phone system.

13. Will I be able to park across my driveway?
Yes, but only outside the controlled hours. It is not possible to mark bays across driveways 
as this would legalise obstruction.

14. What if I do not support the introduction of controlled parking?
The decision to introduce parking controls was made by the Traffic Management Advisory 
Committee when they met on 17 October 2018 following informal consultation with 
residents in the summer of 2018.  Objections to parking controls were considered at a 
meeting on 2 May 2019 and a decision made to extend the Controlled Parking Zone into 
this area.  The purposed of this consultation is to determine the hours and days of 
operation.

15. What happens next?
The results of the consultation will be presented in a report to the Executive Director of 
Place to consider whether 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday or 8am to 8pm, Monday to 
Sunday controls should be introduced.  It is proposed that all occupiers in this area will be 
written to with the result of the consultation and a Public Notice inviting comments and 
objections.  Any objections to the subsequent public notice on the days and hours of 
operation will be included in a report to be considered by the Traffic Management Advisory 
Committee when they meet on 16 October 2019 at 6:30pm in the Town Hall, Katharine 
Street, Croydon.  The report will be available to view 5 working days prior to the scheduled 
meeting by using the following link: www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes.  

Page 58

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes


Please ensure you complete this questionnaire and return it in the attached pre-paid 
envelope to reach us by Friday 9 August 2019.

Name*:………………………………………………………………………………….

Address*:     …………………………………………………………………………………

* Without this information your vote will not be counted. This information will be used only for the 
purpose of this consultation. We will only use responses from occupiers within the proposed 
area shown on the attached drawing – one response per household and returned using the 
official pre-paid envelope provided.

Which option would you prefer for parking controls to be introduced in the 
Dunheved Roads area? 
(Please choose one option only by putting an ‘X’ in the appropriate box).

1 Monday to Saturday
9.00am – 5.00pm

or

2 Monday to Sunday
8.00am – 8.00pm

If you have any other comments please use the box below

The results of the consultation will be presented in a report to be considered by the 
Executive Director of Place by early September 2019. Occupiers will be written to with 
the results and a public notice proposing the favoured hours of operation.  Any objections 
to this proposal will be responded to in a report to be considered by the Traffic 
Management Advisory Committee when they meet on 16 October 2019 meeting in the 
Town Hall, Katharine Street, Croydon. The report will be available to view 7 days before 
this meeting using the following link: 
https://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes 

Please return using the pre-paid envelope provided

Dunheved Roads Area Consultation – QUESTIONNAIRE

Page 59

https://www.croydon.gov.uk/democracy/dande/minutes


This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

16 October 2019 

SUBJECT: KYNASTON ROAD AREA – OBJECTIONS TO THE 
PROPOSED EXTENSION OF THE CROYDON CPZ  

(N1 PERMIT AREA)  

LEAD OFFICER: Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place 

CABINET 
MEMBER: 

Councillor Stuart King, Acting Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) 

WARDS: Bensham Manor 

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  

This report is in line with objectives to improve the safety and reduce obstructive 
parking on the Borough’s roads as detailed in: 

• Croydon Local Plan Feb 2018 
• The Local Implementation Plan; 3.6 Croydon Transport policies 
• Croydon’s Community Strategy; Priority Areas 1, 3, 4 and 6 
• The Croydon Plan 2nd Deposit; T4, T7, T35, T36, T42 and T43. 
• Croydon Corporate Plan 2015 – 18 
• www.croydonobservatory.org/strategies/ 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

These proposals can be contained within available budget.  

FORWARD PLAN KEY DECISION REFERENCE NO.:  Not a Key Decision 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
That the Traffic Management Advisory Committee recommend to the Acting 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) that 
they: 
 

1.1 Consider the objections to extending the existing Croydon Controlled Parking Zone 
( N1 Permit Areas) to Atlee Close, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Crescent, Kynaston 
Road (SE of Swain Road junction), Palmerston Road, Pitt Road and Sandringham 
Road with a combination of Shared-Use (Permit/Pay-by-phone) bays and single 
yellow lines operating 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 
 

1.2 Agree for the reasons detailed in this report to extend the Croydon Controlled 
Parking Zone into the above roads as shown in drawing no. PD- 0402/1-3. 

 
1.3     Inform the objectors and supporters of the above decision. 
 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to consider objections received from the public following 

the formal consultation process on a proposal to extend the existing Croydon 
Controlled Parking Zone (N1 Permit Areas) to Atlee Close, Kynaston Avenue, 
Kynaston Crescent, Kynaston Road (SE of Swain Road), Palmerston Road, Pitt 
Road and Sandringham Road with a combination of shared-use (permit/pay-by-
phone) bays and single yellow lines operating 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday. 

 
2.2 The outcome of the informal consultation was reported to this Committee at its 

meeting on 2nd May 2019, where it was agreed to proceed to a formal consultation 
on the making of Traffic Management Orders to introduce the proposed scheme. 

 
2.3 On 23 April 2019 and pursuant to the delegation from the Leader dated 6 June 2016, 

the Executive Director Place, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Regeneration (job share) determined that it was 
appropriate to refer consideration of the matters detailed paragraph 2.1 above to the 
Traffic Management Advisory Committee for onward recommendation and 
determination to the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Regeneration 
(job share). 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 Following a petitions from Palmerston Road and Sandringham Road in February 

2019 residents were consulted on a possible extension of the Croydon (North Permit 
Area) Controlled Parking Zone into the Bensham Manor Area which included Attlee 
Close, Haslemere Road, Penhurst Road, Norman Road, Torridge Road, Bensham 
Lane (north side), Lucerne Road, Berne Road, Geneva Road, Zermatt Road, 
Ecclesbourne Road, Boswell Road, Bensham Manor Road, Swain Road, Marion 
Road, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Road, Kynaston Crescent, Pitt Road, 
Sandringham Road and Sandringham Road.   

 
3.2 On 2nd May 2019, following informal consultation, it was agreed to undertake formal 

consultation (minute 9/19 refers) regarding proposals to extend the zone into Atlee 
Close, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Crescent, Kynaston Road (SE of Swain Road), 
Palmerston Road, Pitt Road, and Sandringham Road following a positive response 
from an overall majority of respondents in these streets (see results table overleaf). 

 
 

 
 

Page 62



 

Table 3 – roads including part of Kynaston Road to be formally consulted 
 

 
  
3.3 Following detailed design, occupiers in this area were formally consulted (public 

notice stage) on a proposal to introduce 9am to 5pm, Monday to Saturday parking 
controls.  Residents/businesses within this area were written to in September 2019 

 
3.4 With regards to operational hours, overall the majority of respondents supported 

copy of the relevant drawings and the public notice, and invited to submit objections 
to/comments on the scheme by 26th September 2019. 
 
 

4. OBJECTIONS AND RESPONSES 
 
4.1 A total of two objections have been received.  
 

Objection 1 
4.2 An objection from a resident of Kynaston Avenue was raised on the grounds that: 

• The previous survey informal consultation survey with residents was flawed as it 
was not split into roads, which supported the scheme.  

• Will result in loss of parking space in front of driveway. 
 
Objection 2  

4.3 An objection from Kynaston Road resident objects to the scheme 
• Mentioned (on phone) that the permit charge to too high with visitor permit costs 

as well 
• Lack of support for the scheme from the local residents 

 
4.4 Responses  

The controlled parking scheme is proposed to be introduced in an area where the 
overall majority supported its introduction. The level of off-street parking throughout 
the area varies from street to street but the majority of residents do not have a 
driveway or garage. However, a CPZ can benefit residents with off-street parking by 

   Are you in favour of a CPZ? 

  Street Name No. of  
responses Yes No 

Attlee Close  7 3 42% 4 57% 

Kynaston Avenue 36 23 64% 13 36% 

Kynaston Crescent 11 7 63% 4 36% 

Kynaston Road (SE 
of Swain Road) 13 8 61% 5 38% 

Palmerston Road 10 10 100% 0 0% 

Pitt Road 13 11 84% 2 15% 

Sandringham Road 12 10 83% 2 16% 

TOTAL 102 72 71% 30 29% 

Page 63



 

ensuring that their dropped kerb accesses are kept clear during the controlled hours 
and sightlines are not obstructed by parked vehicles. It also assists their visitors to 
park by ensuring on-street spaces are available. It is possible that the introduction of 
a CPZ will encourage residents not to apply for footway cross-over applications.  
 

4.5 Residents who pay for a dropped kerb and also purchase a parking permit are 
paying for two different services – one to park off-street, one to park on-street. The 
income from parking permits is used for the maintenance, administration and 
enforcement of the parking scheme and is kept in a separate budget from dropped 
kerb payments, the income from which does not contribute to parking controls. It is 
considered appropriate to ask residents accessing the same services to pay the 
same charges for them, and in this case, the charge is for a permit to park within a 
CPZ, which applies to residents regardless of whether or not they also have access 
to off-street parking.  

 
4.6    Support for the Proposals 
         Prior to the informal consultation petitions were received (from residents of 

Sandringham Road and Pitt Road) expressing a need for the introduction of a 
parking scheme. The messages stated that: 

 
• Pitt Road suffers from commuter parking by staff working at the nearby shops. 
• Since the introduction of permit parking on Pawson Road and Princess Road this 

has cause displacement of parking in the surrounding area. It has become 
impossible to find parking on Pitt Road and resulted in some residents parking 
obstructively to reserve parking spaces which exacerbates the problem. 

 
4.7    Recommendation 
 In view of the majority support for the scheme, the low number of objections (relative 

to the number of occupiers in this area) and the responses to those objections given 
above, it is recommended to proceed with the scheme as proposed and shown in 
drawing No. PD-0402 

 
 
5 CONSULTATION 

 
5.1 The purpose of this report is to consider comments and objections from the public 

following the giving of public notice of the proposals. Once the notices were 
published, the public had up to 21 days to respond. 

 
5.2 The legal process requires that formal consultation takes place in the form of Public 

Notices published in the London Gazette and a local paper (Croydon Guardian).  
Although it is not a legal requirement, this Council also fixes notices to lamp columns 
in the vicinity of the proposed schemes to inform as many people as possible of the 
proposals. 
 

5.3 Organisations such as the Fire Brigade, the Cycling Council for Great Britain, The 
Pedestrian Association, Age UK and bus operators are consulted separately at the 
same time as the public notice.  Other organisations are also consulted, depending 
on the relevance of the proposal.  No comments were received from any of these 
organisations. 

 
 
 

Page 64



 

6 FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 The required capital expenditure will be funded via an allocation within the TfL LIP 

grant funding allocated to Croydon for 2019/20. Total funding of £75k is included for 
controlled parking schemes in 2019/20 with £57k remaining.  Attached to the papers 
of this meeting is a summary of the overall financial impact of this and other 
applications for approval at this meeting. If all applications were approved there 
would be funding of £2k remaining in 2019/20. 

 
6.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations  

 
 
6.2 The effect of the decision 
6.2.1 The cost of introducing controlled parking into the Bensham Manor area has been 

estimated at £18,000.  This includes the supply and installation of signs, lines and a 
contribution towards the legal costs. 

 
6.2.2 These costs can be contained within the available capital budgets for 2019/20.  
 
6.3 Risks 
6.3.1 The current method of introducing parking controls is very efficient with the design 

and legal work being carried out within the department. The marking of the bays 
and the supply and installation of signs and posts is carried out using the new 
Highways Contract and the rates are lower than if the schemes were introduced 
under separate contractual arrangements. 

 
6.4 Options 
6.4.1  An alternative option is to introduce a Residents Only parking scheme. Virtually all 

permit schemes in the Borough are shared-use with Pay & Display users and this 
offers the greatest flexibility for drivers who may be visitors to residents and 
businesses in the area or the minority of commuters who are willing to pay for all 
day parking. 

 

 
 

 Current    
Financial 

Year 

 M.T.F.S – 3 year Forecast 

  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 
           £’000  £’000  £’000  £’000 
         Revenue Budget     
available 

        

Expenditure  0  0  0  0 

Income  0  0  0  0 

         Capital Budget 
available 

        

Expenditure  57  0  0  0 

Effect of Decision 
from report 

        

Expenditure  18  0  0  0 

         Remaining Budget 
 

 39  0  0  0 

Page 65



 

6.5 Savings/ future efficiencies 
6.5.1 If controlled parking is introduced future income will be generated from               

paid for parking (Pay by Phone), together with enforcement of these controls 
through the issue of Penalty Charge Notices. CPZ schemes have typically been 
proven to be self-financing usually within 4 years of introduction. 

 
 Approved by: F Wright, Head of Finance (Place) 
 
 
7. COMMENTS OF COUNCIL SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER  
 
7.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law  comments on behalf of the Director of 

Law and Governance Sections 6, 45, 46, 47, 49, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) provides the Council with the power 
to implement the changes proposed in this report. This legislation gives a local 
authority the power to make Traffic Management Orders (TMO) to control parking 
by designating on-street parking places, charging for their use and imposing waiting 
and loading restrictions on vehicles of all or certain classes at all times or 
otherwise.  

 
7.2 In making such Orders, the Council must follow the procedures set out at Schedule 

9, Part III of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and detailed in the Local 
Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 (the 
1996 Regulations). The said Regulations, prescribe inter alia, specific publication, 
consultation and notification requirements that must be strictly observed. It is 
incumbent on the Council to take account of any representations made during the 
consultation stage and any material objections received to the making of the Order, 
must be reported back to the decision maker before the Order is made. 

 
7.3 By virtue of section 122 of the RTRA, the Council must exercise its powers under 

that Act so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of 
vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. These powers must be 
exercised so far as practicable having regard to the following matters:- 
• The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises. 
• The effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the regulation and 

restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve or improve amenity. 
• The national air quality strategy. 
• The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of 

securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such 
vehicles. 

• Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant. 
 

7.4 The Council must have proper regard to the matters set out at s 122(1) and (2) and 
specifically document its analysis of all relevant section 122 considerations when 
reaching any decision. 6.5The Council needs to comply with the necessary 
requirements of the Local Authorities Traffic Order Procedure) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1996 by giving the appropriate notices and receiving representations.  
Such representations must be considered before a final decision is made. 

 
 Approved by: Sandra Herbert, Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of 

the Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer. 
 

Page 66



 

 
8. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPACT  
 
8.1 Enforcement of new parking schemes will require increased enforcement duties by 

Civil Enforcement Officers.  It is anticipated that this additional enforcement can be 
undertaken using existing resources. 
 

 Approved by: Jennifer Sankar, Head of Human Resources. 
 
 

9. CUSTOMER IMPACT 
 
9.1 The introduction of a new CPZ into Attlee Close, Kynaston Avenue, Kynaston Road 

(Kynaston Avenue to Sandringham Road), Sandringham Road & Palmerston Road 
is proposed in response to support from local residents for controlled parking.  

 
9.2 Occupiers of all residential and business premises in the area were consulted to 

ensure that all those potentially affected by the proposals were given the 
opportunity to give their views. Parking controls are only introduced in the area 
where the majority of residents are in favour of a scheme. The proposals are 
therefore likely to be seen as a positive move by the Council and should improve 
residents’ and businesses’ views of the work carried out by the Borough. 

 
 
10 EQUALITIES IMPACT 

 
10.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and it is 

considered that a Full EqIA is not required. 
 
 
11. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
11.1 Parking schemes are designed so that the signing is kept to a minimum to reduce 

the environmental impact. Narrow 50mm wide lines can be used in environmentally 
sensitive and conservation areas. 

 
 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPACT  
 
12.1 The fact that uniformed Civil Enforcement Officers will be regularly patrolling the 

area should have a deterrent effect on crime. 
 
 
13. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
13.1 The recommendations are to give notice of the proposal to introduce a new CPZ 

into the roads listed in paragraph 1.2 and subject to receiving no objections on the 
giving of the public notice to make the necessary Traffic Management Order. It is 
considered that parking controls would improve parking conditions for residents and 
visitors whilst improving safety and access. 

 
 

Page 67



 

14. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  
 
14.1 The alternative option would be not to proceed with publication of the public notice 

and formal consultation but this would not accord with the expressed preference of 
the majority of those who responded to this informal consultation. 

 
 
    
REPORT AUTHOR:   Harji Hirani – Traffic / Parking Engineer 
   Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8726 7100 (Ext. 60165) 
   
CONTACT OFFICER:   David Wakeling, Parking Design Manager, 

Highway Improvements, Parking Design 
   020 8726 6000 (Ext. 88229) 
BACKGROUND PAPERS   None 

Page 68



©

JOB NAME

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE

DRAWING NO

KYNASTON ROAD AREA

Controlled Parking Zone Scheme

Statutory Consultation

HH DW NTS

05/09/2019

HWY/PS/PD-0402/1

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

REVISION

-

NOTES

STATUS

-

P
age 69

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
PAWSON'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
46.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
MARION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
34 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
PALMERSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
6 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
45.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
9 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
21 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
SANDRINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
KYNASTON CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
45.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
9 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
KYNASTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
Treetops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©

JOB NAME

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE

DRAWING NO

KYNASTON ROAD AREA

Controlled Parking Zone Scheme

Statutory Consultation

HH DW NTS

05/09/2019

HWY/PS/PD-0402/2

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

REVISION

-

NOTES

STATUS

-

P
age 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
MAYO ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
PAWSON'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
Pawson's Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
46.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
34 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
PALMERSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
45.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
9 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
21 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
SANDRINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
47.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
48.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
KYNASTON CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
44.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
45.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
PITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
ECCLESBOURNE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
KYNASTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©

JOB NAME

DRAWING TITLE

DESIGNER VERIFIED SCALE AT A4 DATE

DRAWING NO

KYNASTON ROAD AREA

Controlled Parking Zone Scheme

Statutory Consultation

HH DW NTS

04/09/2019

HWY/PS/PD-0402/3

PLACE DEPARTMENT

STREETS DIVISION

DIRECTOR - STEVE ILES

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

REVISION

-

STATUS

-

Page 73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
282

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
BERT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
Ecclesbourne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
46.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
KIMBERLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
ATTLEE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
Little Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
Kurtz

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
CLARKE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
1 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
TURNER CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
KYNASTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
DISABLED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office ©  Crown   Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. London Borough of Croydon. Licence No. 100017680. 2016



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Norfolk Road Area - Results of Informal Consultation Report
	12. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	Please complete this questionnaire and return it in the enclosed pre-paid envelope to reach us by Friday, 21 June 2019.
	Comments:

	Parking Consultation: Norfolk Road Area - QUESTIONNAIRE
	2 NORFOLK ROAD AREA PROPOSED CPZ BOUNDARY
	Sheets and Views
	A4 horizontal



	6 Cecil Road Area - Results of Statutory Consultation on the Proposed Change of Operational Hours of a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)
	17. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	2 PD-396 Cecil Road change of hours

	7 Dunheved Roads Area - Results of Informal Consultation on the Proposed Hours of a New Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ)
	13. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	2 N&N2 Cons-N2&N Con July19 (2)
	Sheets and Views
	N2&N Con July19 (2)


	3 Dunheveds - Further informal Consultation
	4 Dunheved Roads FAQs
	5 Dunheved Roads - Questionnaire

	8 Kynaston Road Area - Objections to the Proposed Extension of the Croydon CPZ (N1 Permit Area)
	14. OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
	2 Kynaston Rd area A cpz scheme
	Sheets and Views
	Pitt Road cpz scheme-Layout12


	3 Kynaston Road area B cpz scheme
	Sheets and Views
	Pitt Road cpz scheme-Layout13


	4 Kynaston Road area C cpz scheme
	Sheets and Views
	Pitt Road cpz scheme-Layout11




